












Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2018/19Balances through May

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund   

1100 230,761.00 342,924.00 25,253.80 340,336.58 22,666.38-Teachers Salaries

1115 250.00 60.00 190.00 Certificated Extra Duty

1120 75,787.00 16,450.00 9,882.50 6,567.50 Certificated Substitutes

1200 43,846.00 44,724.00 3,726.91 41,195.94 198.85-Certificated Pupil Support Ser

1300 199,167.00 203,969.00 20,392.21 224,314.39 40,737.60-Certificated Supervisor Admini

1310 10,000.00 10,000.00 1,000.00 9,000.00 Teacher in Charge

Total for Object 1000 559,561.00 618,317.00 49,372.92 616,789.41 47,845.33-

2100 120,916.00 134,310.00 15,334.66 106,746.89 12,228.45 Instructional Aides' Salaries

2115 588.00 1,061.00 2,186.98 1,125.98-Classified Extra Duty

2120 8,000.00 7,950.00 5,893.47 2,056.53 Classified Substitutes

2200 28,844.00 16,147.00 1,367.73 18,329.23 3,549.96-Classified Support Salaries

2215 1,000.00 771.78 228.22 Classified Support Extra Duty

2300 95,174.00 95,011.00 8,013.00 88,638.00 1,640.00-Classified Supervisors' Admini

2400 144,227.00 147,022.00 11,816.95 124,135.03 11,070.02 Clerical Technical Office Staf

2420 250.00 250.00 250.00 Clerical Substiture

2900 16,448.00 16,608.00 12,378.50 4,229.50 Other Classified Salaries

Total for Object 2000 414,447.00 419,359.00 36,532.34 359,079.88 23,746.78 

3101 114,331.00 111,928.00 7,964.65 82,945.14 21,018.21 STRS Certificated Positions

3102 749.00 961.00 76.42 1,802.47 917.89-STRS Classified Positions

3201 86.69 86.69-PERS Certificated Positions

3202 73,152.00 73,603.00 5,500.56 62,238.92 5,863.52 PERS Classified Positions

3301 155.00 120.28 120.28-OASDI Certificated Positions

3302 23,803.00 24,135.00 2,052.26 20,221.62 1,861.12 OASDI Classified Positions

3311 7,488.00 8,536.00 675.96 8,551.98 691.94-Medicare Certificated Position

3312 5,884.00 5,975.00 521.27 5,112.23 341.50 Medicare Classified Positions

3401 111,502.00 129,036.00 10,259.93 101,237.11 17,538.96 Health & Welfare Benefits Cert

3402 124,277.00 113,828.00 9,352.60 102,540.75 1,934.65 Health & Welfare Benefits Clas

3501 277.00 310.00 24.70 309.10 23.80-SUI Certificated

3502 209.00 209.00 18.27 177.69 13.04 SUI Classified

3601 19,974.00 16,859.00 1,560.52 16,898.27 1,599.79-Workers' Compensation Certific

3602 15,100.00 13,792.00 1,203.42 9,911.43 2,677.15 Workers' Compensation Classifi

3902 5,730.00 5,730.00-Golden Handshake-Class

Total for Object 3000 496,901.00 499,172.00 39,210.56 417,883.68 42,077.76 

4100 672.00 892.00 892.00 Approved Textbooks Core Curric

4200 1,000.00 .00 Library and Reference Material

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2019, Period = 11, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 1 of 3

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Jun  4 2019  8:18AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1115
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1310
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2115
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2215
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2420
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3101
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3102
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3201
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3202
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3301
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3302
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3311
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3312
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3401
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3402
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3501
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3502
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3601
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3602
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3902
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4200


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2018/19Balances through May

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund    (continued)

4300 71,970.00 57,113.00 4,277.86 21,332.77 31,502.37 Materials and Supplies

4320 600.00 600.00 600.00 Custodial Grounds Supplies

4330 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,002.31 2.31-Office Supplies

4350 5,500.00 6,000.00 628.09 1,314.57 4,057.34 Vehicle Upkeep

4400 23,311.00 16,196.00 589.86 6,050.58 9,555.56 Noncapitalized Equipment

Total for Object 4000 104,053.00 81,801.00 5,495.81 29,700.23 46,604.96 

5100 43,000.00 43,000.00 6,580.00 30,460.00 5,960.00 Subagreements for Services

5200 44,755.00 43,841.00 4,310.56 36,153.08 3,377.36 Travel and Conference

5300 19,631.00 20,163.00 235.33 14,262.08 5,665.59 Dues and Membership

5400 9,600.00 11,000.00 9,434.00 1,566.00 Insurance

5500 9,200.00 9,200.00 2,280.15 7,807.53 887.68-Operation Housekeeping Service

5600 3,100.00 3,100.00 118.72 1,342.15 1,639.13 Rentals, Leases, Repairs, Nonc

5801 20,500.00 30,500.00 12,417.50 18,082.50 Legal Services

5803 500.00 500.00 500.00 Legal Publications

5805 793.00 842.00 168.00 96.00 578.00 Personnel Expense

5806 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Negotiations

5808 1,500.00 1,500.00 209.63 1,290.37 .00 Other Services & Fees

5810 457,092.00 406,114.00 106,445.26 272,120.96 27,547.78 Contracted Services

5899 2,092.04 1,024.01 3,116.05-SPJUSD to Reimburse

5900 5,200.00 10,500.00 812.40 8,952.47 735.13 Communications

Total for Object 5000 615,871.00 581,260.00 123,252.09 395,360.15 62,647.76 

6170 290,000.00 293,000.00 291,968.39 1,031.61 LAND IMPROVEMENTS

6200 7,664.00 22,664.00 22,664.00 Building and Improvement of Bu

6400 20,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 Equipment

Total for Object 6000 317,664.00 335,664.00 .00 291,968.39 43,695.61 

7110 5,501.00 3,119.00 2,382.00 County Tuition Inter Dist Agre

7141 24,428.00 24,428.00 24,428.00 Tuition, excess cost etc betwe

7310 .00 Direct Support/Indirect Costs

Total for Object 7000 24,428.00 29,929.00 .00 3,119.00 26,810.00 

197,737.54 2,532,925.00 2,565,502.00 253,863.72 2,113,900.74 Total for Fund 01 and Expense accounts

Fund 11 - ADULT ED   

1300 80,950.00 7,117.34 34,593.58 39,239.08 Certificated Supervisor Admini

3101 13,179.00 1,158.70 5,631.83 6,388.47 STRS Certificated Positions

3311 1,174.00 103.20 501.61 569.19 Medicare Certificated Position

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2019, Period = 11, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 2 of 3

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Jun  4 2019  8:18AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4320
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4330
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4350
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5500
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5600
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5801
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5803
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5805
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5806
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5808
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5810
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5899
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6170
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7110
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7141
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7310
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=1300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3101
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3311


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2018/19Balances through May

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 11 - ADULT ED    (continued)

3401 17,537.00 1,063.90 4,255.60 12,217.50 Health & Welfare Benefits Cert

3501 40.00 3.56 17.30 19.14 SUI Certificated

3601 2,710.00 238.26 1,158.05 1,313.69 Workers' Compensation Certific

Total for Object 3000 .00 34,640.00 2,567.62 11,564.39 20,507.99 

4300 5,000.00 452.37 1,073.07 3,474.56 Materials and Supplies

4400 2,685.00 361.76 7,980.62 5,657.38-Noncapitalized Equipment

Total for Object 4000 .00 7,685.00 814.13 9,053.69 2,182.82-

5200 2,000.00 11,267.00 13,267.00-Travel and Conference

5203 894.36 894.36-MILEAGE

5300 160.00 160.00-Dues and Membership

5810 45,000.00 460.57 15,999.43 28,540.00 Contracted Services

Total for Object 5000 .00 45,000.00 2,460.57 28,320.79 14,218.64 

6200 68,639.00 36,008.29 104,647.29-Building and Improvement of Bu

6400 30,000.00 7,782.25 22,217.75 Equipment

Total for Object 6000 .00 30,000.00 68,639.00 43,790.54 82,429.54-

7619 1,725.00 1,725.00 Other Authorized Interfund Tra

8,921.65-.00 200,000.00 81,598.66 127,322.99 Total for Fund 11 and Expense accounts

Fund 16 - FOREST RES   

7619 52,121.00 52,121.00 52,121.00 Other Authorized Interfund Tra

52,121.00 52,121.00 52,121.00 .00 .00 Total for Fund 16, Expense accounts and Object 7000

240,936.89 2,585,046.00 2,817,623.00 335,462.38 2,241,223.73 Total for Org 001 - Sierra County Office of Education

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2019, Period = 11, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 3 of 3

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Jun  4 2019  8:18AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3401
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3501
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3601
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=4300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=4400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5203
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5810
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=6200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=6400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=7619
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=111062&p2=1&p3=16&p8=Fund&p7=7619


1 
SCOE Minutes 
May 14, 2019 

MINUTES FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

May 14, 2019 
Sierra County Office of Education, 109 Beckwith Rd., Loyalton, CA 96118 
Videoconferenced to Downieville School, 130 School St, Downieville CA 95936 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 

President PATTY HALL called the meeting to order at 6:55pm. 

B. ROLL CALL 
PRESENT: Patty Hall, President 
  Allen Wright, Vice President 
  Andy Genasci, Clerk 
  Mike Moore, Member 
  Jenny Gant, Member 

ABSENT: None 

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
MOORE/GANT 
5/0 

D. FLAG SALUTE 

E. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 
1. Superintendent’s Report 

a. Academic Advisor/Career Technician Job Description and Revised Salary 
Schedule 

2. Business Report 
a. Account Object Summary-Balance from 07/01/2018 to 04/30/2019 

3. Staff Reports 
a. ADULT ED—JACKSON: Meeting with DSA on May 28th to go over plans for 

portable site being added to LHS site. Curriculum entered for CDE approval, 
expecting approval this Friday. On site visits for LAN devices to test internet 
connectivity and ability to conduct classes with curriculum chosen. Received 
information needed to complete WASC meeting in September. Have a teacher 
at each site interested in teaching Adult Ed. 

b. SELPA—BETHKE: Spring Parent Night on May 20th at 6pm—introducing a 
therapeutic horse-back riding program out of Graeagle. On the subject of 
Suicide Prevention brought up at the Board Retreat and the earlier discussion 
of the FAIR Act around the curriculum, it needs to be highlighted that the 
LGBTQ group is at a higher risk of suicide than other groups and just 
acknowledging Civil Rights and the LGBTQ group in curriculum/instruction 
lessens the likelihood of suicide among this group. 

c. CURRICULUM—MESCHERY: Statistics also show that injecting more 
inclusive, accurate and respectful information into the curriculum reduces 
bullying by 50% with the LGBTQ population and bullying also contributes to 
suicide tendencies. Taking next steps around math curriculum—setting 
teachers up for trainings to learn a new way of teaching math. Senior banquet 
June 7th, dinner and awards ceremony. 

4. Board Member Reports 
a. GENASCI: Comments from community about staff speeding near schools. 

GRANT: Expecting improvements to LES parking lot from County—Stop 
signs, more Slow-Down lighting, etc. 



2 
SCOE Minutes 
May 14, 2019 

 

5. Public Comment 
a. Current location – none 
b. Videoconference location – none 

F. CONSENT CALENDAR 
1. Approval of minutes for the Regular Board Meeting held April 09, 2019 
2. Approval of Board Report-Checks Dated 04/01/2019 through 04/30/2019 
3. Authorization to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding between Sierra County Office 

of Education and Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District, Agreement 2020-01C 
MOORE/WRIGHT 
5/0 

G. ACTION ITEMS 
1. New Business  

PUBLIC HEARING – LCAP 
a. Public Hearing opened at 7:05pm to receive public comment on the Proposed 

2019-20 Local Control and Accountability Plan 
CERESOLA: Continuing work on 2019-20 LCAP—meeting with Jennifer Hix 
again from Placer County next week to get continued guidance from her. 
Currently reviewing more detailed goals to add in. 
MOORE: LCAP will be incorporated into future Board goals as well as the 
Superintendent’s goals. 
Closed at 7:10pm. 

PUBLIC HEARING – SCOE Budget 
b. Public Hearing opened at 7:10pm to receive public comment on the 2019-20 

Proposed Budget. Closed at 7:11pm with no comment. 

PUBLIC HEARING – Proposition 30, Education Protection Account 
c. Public Hearing opened at 7:11pm to receive public comment on the use of 

Proposition 30 Funding for 2019-20. Closed at 7:12pm with no comment. 

PUBLIC HEARING – Collective Bargaining Disclosure Statement 
d. Public Hearing opened at 7:12pm to receive public comment regarding 

Collective Bargaining Agreements (Item e). Closed at 7:13pm with no 
comment. 

e. Presentation and Approval of the follow-up Tentative Collective Bargaining 
Agreement dated April 10, 2019 for Sierra-Plumas Teachers’ Association, 
Certificated Employees, 2018-2019 Negotiations 

f. Completion of Bargaining, Sierra-Plumas Teachers’ Association, Certificated 
Employees, 2018-2019 Negotiations 

GENASCI moved to approve e & f. Second by GANT. 
5/0 
g. In accordance with Rodda Act, the Classified Employees are Sunshining their 

proposal to revamp the salary schedules for 2018-2019 Negotiations 
GRANT: Discussed in closed session with the Board. Will discuss negotiations 
with Classified reps with direction from Board. No action tonight. This is 
information only. 

h. Approval of 2019-2020 Extra Duty Assignments and Stipends 
GRANT: Will get minor concerns cleaned up with office staff. 
MOORE/WRIGHT 
5/0 
 



3 
SCOE Minutes 
May 14, 2019 

i. Adopt Resolution 20-001C, Set Superintendent Salary, 2019-20 Salary 
MOORE/GANT 
WRIGHT – AYE 
GANT – AYE 
MOORE – AYE 
HALL – AYE 
GENASCI – AYE 
5/0 

 

BOARD POLICIES, ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS, EXHIBITS, BOARD BYLAWS 

j. 1312.4—Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures 
1. Administrative Regulation, revisions 
2. Exhibit(1), revisions 
3. Exhibit(2), revisions 

MOORE/HALL 
5/0 

k. 3100—Budget 
1. Board Policy, revisions 
2. Administrative Regulation, revisions 

MOORE/WRIGHT 
5/0 

l. 3260—Fees and Charges 
1. Board Policy, revisions 
2. Administrative Regulation, revisions 

GANT/MOORE 
5/0 

m. 3515.4—Recovery from Property Loss or Damage 
1. Board Policy, revisions 
2. Administrative Regulation, revisions 

MOORE/HALL 
5/0 

n. 4030—Nondiscrimination in Employment 
1. Board Policy, revisions 
2. Administrative Regulation, revisions 

MOORE/GANT 
5/0 

o. 4161.1 & 4361.1—Personal Illness/Injury Leave 
1. Administrative Regulation, revisions 

p. 4261.1—Personal Illness/Injury Leave 
1. Administrative Regulation, revisions 

MOORE moved to approve o & p. Second by GANT. 
5/0 

q. 5117—Interdistrict Attendance 
1. Board Policy, revisions 
2. Administrative Regulation, revisions 

MOORE/WRIGHT 
5/0 

r. 5145.6—Parental Notifications 
1. Exhibit, revisions 

MOORE/HALL 
5/0 



4 
SCOE Minutes 
May 14, 2019 

s. 5127—Graduation Ceremonies and Activities 
1. Administrative Regulation, revisions requested by Administrators 

MOORE/HALL 
5/0 

t. 1250—Visitors/Outsiders 
1. Board Policy, for Board review 
2. Administrative Regulation, for Board review 

MOORE/GENASCI—no changes 
5/0 

H. ADVANCED PLANNING 
1. Next Regular Board Meeting will be held on June 11, 2019 at Downieville School, 130 

School St, Downieville CA 95936 beginning with Closed Session, as needed, at 5:00pm 
and the Regular Board Meeting at 6:00pm. 

2. Suggested Agenda Items 
none 

I. ADJOURN at 7:41pm 
MOORE/WRIGHT 
5/0 

 
 
 

_______________________________  _______________________________ 
Andy J. Genasci, Clerk    Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent 



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 05/01/2019 through 05/31/2019

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

00015264 05/10/2019 CIT 01-5900 PHONE SYSTEM/MAINTENANCE 773.08 

00015265 05/10/2019 HEIDI BETHKE 01-5200 PER DIEM/PARKING/MILEAGE 50.00 

00015266 05/10/2019 FOLCHI LOGGING AND CONSTRUCTION, INC. 11-6200 BASE MATERIAL 392.54 

00015267 05/10/2019 JANIS HARDEMAN 01-5810 NURSE SERVICES 2,500.00 

00015268 05/10/2019 WENDY JACKSON 11-5200 PER DIEM/AIRLINE 393.76 

11-5203 MILEAGE 389.76 783.52 

00015269 05/10/2019 JANE V. LEE, M.A., LMFT 01-5810 COUNSELING SERVICES 1,920.00 

00015270 05/10/2019 LIBERTY UTILITIES CPEC 01-5500 ELECTRICAL SERVICE 993.03 

00015271 05/10/2019 MARY LOWE 01-5810 COUNSELING SERVICES 4,920.00 

00015272 05/10/2019 LESLIE MARSDEN, MOT, OTR/L 01-5810 OCCUPATIONAL THERAPY SERVICES 1,787.50 

00015273 05/10/2019 BARBARA MCKURTIS 01-5100 CONTRACTED CONSULTANT 

AGREEMENT

7,050.00 

00015274 05/10/2019 MIKE MOORE 01-5200 PER DIEM 29.00 

00015275 05/10/2019 OFFICE DEPOT 01-4300 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES 457.34 

11-4300 OFFICE SUPPLIES 56.62 513.96 

00015276 05/10/2019 RAY MORGAN COMPANY 01-5600 COPIER MAINT. 29.26 

00015277 05/10/2019 REALLY GOOD STUFF, INC. 01-4300 INSTRUCTIONAL SUPPLIES 80.52 

00015278 05/10/2019 SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 01-5808 BANK SERVICE FEES 30.00 

00015279 05/10/2019 SIERRA VALLEY HOME CENTER 01-4300 SHOP SUPPLIES 691.76 

00015280 05/10/2019 SOTER TECHNOLOGIES 01-4400 VAPE DETECTION SYSTEM 4,415.50 

00015281 05/10/2019 TRI COUNTY SCHOOLS INSURANCE GROUP 01-3902 MAY 19 HEALTH INSURANCE 264.00 

01-9535 MAY 19 HEALTH INSURANCE 3,209.00 

76-9576 MAY 19 HEALTH INSURANCE 19,563.80 23,036.80 

00015282 05/10/2019 U.S. BANK 01-4300 CPI WORKBOOKS 213.97 

01-5200 SUPT. TRAVEL EXPENSES 48.85 

01-5899 SUPT. TRAVEL EXPENSES 28.39 291.21 

00015283 05/10/2019 VOYAGER 01-4350 FUEL EXPENSE 157.56 

01-5200 FUEL EXPENSE 81.77 239.33 

00015284 05/28/2019 AMBER DONNELLY 01-5200 MILEAGE 142.68 

00015285 05/28/2019 KATHLEEN EPPS 01-5200 APR/MAY MILEAGE 888.56 

00015286 05/28/2019 JAQUEZ CUSTOM CRAFT, INC 11-6200 BOBCAT LABOR 200.00 

00015287 05/28/2019 MARLENE MONGOLO 01-5200 MILEAGE 196.04 

00015288 05/28/2019 MADERA SCHWARY 01-5200 MILEAGE 893.20 

00015289 05/28/2019 SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 01-5808 BANK SERVICE FEES 93.63 

00015291 05/28/2019 DSA DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES Cancelled DSA FEES 1,437.50 *

Cancelled on 06/03/2019

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 1 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Jun  4 2019  8:20AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 05/01/2019 through 05/31/2019

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

Total Number of Checks 27 54,378.62 

Net Issue

Cancel 

AmountCount

 1 1,437.50 

52,941.12 

Fund Summary

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

County School Service Fund 23 31,944.64 01

ADULT EDUCATION 4 1,432.68 11

Payroll Clearing 1 19,563.80 76

Net (Check Amount)

Less Unpaid Sales Tax Liability

Total Number of Checks 26 52,941.12 

.00 

52,941.12 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 2 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Jun  4 2019  8:20AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education



Sierra County Office of Education (46 10462 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: Nona Griesert
Date: 5/31/2019 3:07 PM

2019-20 Certification of Assurances
Submission of Certification of Assurances is required every fiscal year.  A complete list of legal and program 
assurances for the fiscal year can be found at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/co/ca19assurancestoc.asp.

CDE Program Contact:
Consolidated Application Support Desk, Education Data Office, conappsupport@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0297

Consolidated Application Certification Statement

I hereby certify that all of the applicable state and federal rules and regulations will be observed by this applicant; 
that to the best of my knowledge the information contained in this application is correct and complete; and I 
agree to participate in the monitoring process regarding the use of these funds according to the standards and 
criteria set forth by the California Department of Education Federal Program Monitoring (FPM) Office. Legal 
assurances for all programs are accepted as the basic legal condition for the operation of selected projects and 
programs and copies of assurances are retained on site. I certify that we accept all assurances except for those 
for which a waiver has been obtained or requested. A copy of all waivers or requests is on file. I certify that actual 
ink signatures for this form are on file.

Authorized Representative's Full Name Merrill M. Grant, Ed.D.

Authorized Representative's Signature

Authorized Representative's Title Superintendent

Authorized Representative's Signature Date 06/11/2019

Page 1 of 6Report Date:5/31/2019
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and 

other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 
violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Sierra County Office of Education (46 10462 0000000) Status: Draft
Saved by: Nona Griesert
Date: 5/31/2019 2:59 PM

2019-20 Protected Prayer Certification
ESSA Section 8524 specifies federal requirements regarding constitutionally protected prayer in public 
elementary and secondary schools. This form meets the annual requirement and provides written certification.

CDE Program Contact:
Franco Rozic, Title I Monitoring and Support Office, frozic@cde.ca.gov , 916-319-0269

Protected Prayer Certification Statement

The LEA hereby assures and certifies to the California State Board of Education that the LEA has no policy that 
prevents, or otherwise denies participation in, constitutionally protected prayer in public schools as set forth in the 
"Guidance on Constitutionally Protected Prayer in Public Elementary and Secondary Schools." 

The LEA hereby assures that this page has been printed and contains an ink signature. The ink signature copy 
shall be made available to the California Department of Education upon request or as part of an audit, a 
compliance review, or a complaint investigation.

The authorized representative agrees to the above statement Yes

Authorized Representative's Full Name Merrill M. Grant

Authorized Representative's Title Superintendent

Authorized Representative's Signature Date 06/11/2019

Comment

If the LEA is not able to certify at this time, then an explanation must be 
provided in the Comment field. (Maximum 500 characters)

Page 2 of 6Report Date:5/31/2019
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and 

other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 
violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Sierra County Office of Education (46 10462 0000000) Status: Draft
Saved by: Nona Griesert
Date: 5/31/2019 3:01 PM

2019-20 LCAP Federal Addendum Certification

CDE Program Contact:
Local Agency Systems Support Office, LCFF@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-5233

To receive funding under the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA), a local educational agency (LEA) must have a 
plan approved by the State Educational Agency on file with the State. Within California, LEAs that apply for 
ESSA funds are required to complete the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP), the LCAP Federal 
Addendum Template (Addendum), and the Consolidated Application (ConApp). The LCAP, in conjunction with 
the Addendum and the ConApp, serve to meet the requirements of the ESSA LEA Plan.

In order to apply for funds, the LEA must certify that the 2017/18–2019/20 LCAP has been approved by the local 
governing board or governing body of the LEA. As part of this certification the LEA is agreeing to submit the 
LCAP Federal Addendum that has been approved by the local governing board or governing body of the LEA to 
the California Department of Education (CDE), and acknowledging that the LEA agrees to work with the CDE to 
ensure that the Addendum addresses all required provisions of the ESSA programs for which they are applying 
for federal education funds.

County Offices of Education and School Districts Enter the original 
approval date of the county office of education or school district 
2017/18–2019/20 LCAP

07/01/2017

Note: For districts, the date should be the day your county office of 
education (COE) approved your 2017/18–2019/20 LCAP. For COEs, it 
should be the date the CDE approved your 2017/18–2019/20 LCAP. 

Charter Schools Enter the adoption date of the charter school LCAP

Authorized Representative's Full Name Merrill M. Grant

Authorized Representative's Title Superintendent

Page 3 of 6Report Date:5/31/2019
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and 

other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 
violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Sierra County Office of Education (46 10462 0000000) Status: Draft
Saved by: Nona Griesert
Date: 5/31/2019 3:02 PM

2019-20 Application for Funding

CDE Program Contact:
Consolidated Application Support Desk, Education Data Office, conappsupport@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0297

Local Governing Board Approval

The local educational agency (LEA) is required to review and receive approval of their Application for Funding 
selections with their local governing board.

Date of approval by local governing board 06/11/2019

District English Learner Advisory Committee Review

Per Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Section 11308, if your LEA has more than 50 English learners, 
then the LEA must establish a District English Learner Advisory Committee (DELAC) which shall review and 
advise on the development of the application for funding programs that serve English learners.

DELAC representative's full name

(non-LEA employee)

DELAC review date

Meeting minutes web address

Please enter the web address of DELAC review meeting minutes (format 
http://SomeWebsiteName.xxx). If a web address is not available, then the 
LEA must keep the minutes on file which indicate that the application was 
reviewed by the committee.

DELAC comment DELAC Advisory Committee is not 
required. EL population is under the 

threshold.

If an advisory committee refused to review the application, or if DELAC 
review is not applicable, enter a comment. (Maximum 500 characters)

Application for Categorical Programs

To receive specific categorical funds for a school year the LEA must apply for the fund by selecting Yes. Only the 
categorical funds the LEA is eligible to receive are displayed.

Title I, Part A (Basic Grant) Yes

ESSA Sec. 1111 et seq.
SACS 3010

Title II, Part A (Supporting Effective Instruction) Yes

ESEA Sec. 2104
SACS 4035

Title III English Learner No

ESEA Sec. 3102
SACS 4203

Title III Immigrant No

Page 4 of 6Report Date:5/31/2019
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and 

other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 
violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Sierra County Office of Education (46 10462 0000000) Status: Draft
Saved by: Nona Griesert
Date: 5/31/2019 3:02 PM

2019-20 Application for Funding

CDE Program Contact:
Consolidated Application Support Desk, Education Data Office, conappsupport@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0297

ESEA Sec. 3102
SACS 4201

Title IV, Part A (Student Support) Yes

ESSA Sec. 1112(b)
SACS 4127

Page 5 of 6Report Date:5/31/2019
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and 

other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 
violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Sierra County Office of Education (46 10462 0000000) Status: Draft
Saved by: Nona Griesert
Date: 5/31/2019 3:04 PM

2019-20 Substitute System for Time Accounting
This certification may be used by auditors and by California Department of Education oversight personnel when 
conducting audits and sub-recipient monitoring of the substitute time-and-effort system. Approval is automatically 
granted when the local educational agency (LEA) submits and certifies this data collection.

CDE Program Contact:
John Miles, Financial Accountability and Info Srv Office, jmiles@cde.ca.gov, 916-445-7289

 

The LEA certifies that only eligible employees will participate in the substitute system and that the system used to 
document employee work schedules includes sufficient controls to ensure that the schedules are accurate.  
Detailed information on documenting salaries and wages, including both substitute systems of time accounting, 
are described in Procedure 905 of the California School Accounting Manual posted on the web at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/sa/.

2019-20 Request for authorization No

LEA certifies that the following is a full disclosure of any known 
deficiencies with the substitute system or known challenges with 
implementing the system

(Maximum 500 characters)

Page 6 of 6Report Date:5/31/2019
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and 

other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 
violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application





































SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

2019-2020 Extra Duty Assignments - Athletic Coaches 

2019-2020 EXTRA DUTY ASSIGNMENTS Athletics 
Position Stipend Personnel Personnel Personnel Personnel 

Downieville LHS LMS 7th/8th LES K-6th 
 Coaching Assignments 

Athletic Director - Loyalton 
High/$2,500 per season x3/$7,500 cap 

$7,500 
cap 

Katie Campbell 

Athletic Director – Downieville/$500 

per team or $2,000 cap 
$2,000 
cap 

John Smith 

Athletic Director - Loyalton Gr. 6,7,8 $1,000 Sheri Roen 

Varsity Football LHS $2,000 Brad Campbell 

Assistant Varsity Football LHS $1,500 Augustine 
Corcoran 

Varsity Basketball - Boys $2,000 John Smith 

J.V. Basketball - Boys $2,000 

Varsity Basketball - Girls $2,000 Stacey Hood 

J.V Basketball – Girls $2,000 Sheri Roen 

7th Grade Basketball – Boys $   500 

8th Grade Basketball – Boys $   500 

7th  Grade Basketball - Girls $   500 

8th Grade Basketball – Girls $   500 

7th/8th Gr COED Basketball $1,500 

Boys Baseball $2,000 Bryan Griffin 

Girls Softball $2,000 Andrea Ceresola 

Varsity Volleyball - Girls $2,000 Christine Acuna Laraine Sei 

JV Volleyball Girls $1,500 Amber Donnelly 

Track $2,000 Jason Adams 

Tennis $1,500 John Smith 

Cheerleading Advisor-Season $2,000 Bre Whitley 

Physical Fitness Coordinator District-
wide 

$   500 
District wide 

Cross Country Coach $   500 

Golf Coach $1,500 Joel Armstrong 

Soccer $2,000 Stephanie 
Shelby 

Presented to the Governing Board: June 11,2019; Doc: Personnel/2019-20 Extra Duty Assignment Personnel_Athletics_June 2019 



SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

2019-2020 Extra Duty Assignments – Certificated 

Presented to the Governing Board: June 11,2019;  
Doc:Personnel/ 2019-2020 Extra Duty Personnel non athlete_June 2019 

 

Position Stipend LES  LHS DVL  

       
WASC LEAD  
 Loyalton Maintenance Year        
 Downieville Mid-term visitation year 

 
   $1,000 
  $1,500 

 
TBD 

  
 

 
 
TBD 

 

Site Technology Coordinator 
    Loyalton  Elementary  
    Loyalton Junior/Senior High 7-12 
    Downieville K-12 

$1,500  
TBD 

  
 
Barbara Jaquez 

 
 
 
Katrina 
Bosworth 

 

Teacher-In-Charge per semester 
    Loyalton Elementary 
    Loyalton High 7-12 
    Downieville K-12 
   

$1,000  

Laurie Petterson 

  
 

Barbara Jaquez 

  

Lead Teacher Downieville School per month $1,000    TBD  

Response to Intervention 
    Loyalton High 7-12 
    Downieville K-12 
    Loyalton Elementary 

 
  $1,500 
  $1,000          
$1,500 

  

 
 
 
Erin Folchi 

 

  
TBD  
 

 
 
TBD 
 

 

       

Friday Night Live  Program Advisor 
   Friday Night Live (9-12), Club Live (7-8),    

Friday Night Live Kids (K-6) 
  Loyalton Elementary, Loyalton High (7-8) (9-12) 
  Downieville Elem, Downieville High (7-8) (9-12) 

 
 
 

$2,000      
$1,000 

 
 
 

Erin Folchi (K-6) 
 

  
 
 
TBD 

 
 
 
 
TBD 

 

      
 

 

 

 



California Department of Education                                                               Special Education Division 
Revised Feb 2017 

 
 

Annual Budget and Service Plan 
 

Checklist of Items to Submit to the 
California Department of Education by June 30, 2019 

 
Annual Budget Plan: 
 

Form ABP–01: Certification of Annual Budget Plan  
 
Annual Budget Plan–Page 2 
 
Copy of Public Hearing Notice 
 
 

Annual Service Plan: 
 
Form ASP–03: Certification of Annual Service Plan 
 
Form ASP–01a: California Special Education Management Information System 
(CASEMIS) Service Descriptions 

 
Form ASP–01b: Modified or Customized CASEMIS Descriptions 
 
� Description of CASEMIS Code 900, if applicable 
 
Physical Location of Services Plan–Form ASP–02a 
 
� Annual Service Plan (001) 

 
� Other Facilities (002) 

 
� Infant Services (003) 

 
� Pre-School Services (004) 
 

 Facility 32: County Jails Included in the Plan  
 
Copy of Public Hearing Notice 























































  Prepared & Presented by: Nona Griesert, Business Manager 

 

Sierra County Office of Education 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Adopted Budget 
2019/2020 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

June 11, 2019 
Merrill M. Grant, Ed.D./Superintendent 

 
  



    

SCOE 2019-2020 Adopted Budget Narrative 
Page 2 of 7 

Sierra County Office of Education 
2019-2020 Adopted Budget  

Presented June 11, 2019 

 

 

Sierra County Office of Education (SCOE) is required by law to adopt a budget each year by June 30th of the preceding year.  

The budget encompasses the General Fund of the district, and is also accompanied by a cash-

flow projection and a multi-year projection covering the 2019/20 budget and two subsequent 

years.  

 

The following narrative provides the major assumption used in the preparation of the County’s 

2019-2020 June Adopted Budget.  Keep in mind that a budget and multi-year projection are just 

that-projections, not forecasts.  Projections are expected to change as various factors change, 

they are not predictions.  Projections are the mathematical result of today’s decisions based on a 

given set of assumptions.  Forecasts, on the other hand, are predictions of the future; there is a higher implied reliability factor 

than for projections.  Projections will change anytime the underlying factors change. 

 

 

 

The Big Picture 
 

The May Revision confirms that General Fund revenues increased by $3.2 billion since the release of the Governor’s January 

budget. The administration attributes these gains primarily to short-term personal gains stemming from a strong stock market 

and initial public offerings of stock of large California-based companies, as well as corporate tax revenue from shifting of 

income in 2017 and 2018 and other one-time revenues from repatriation of foreign earnings associated with the federal tax 

changes. The revenues are increased short-term from 2017-18 through 2019-20 in the budget forecast but lower for years 

beyond the forecast window. 

  

The May Revision maintains full funding of the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF), contributions to the Rainy Day 

Budget Reserve (Prop. 2, 2014), and a first-time deposit to the Public School System Stabilization Account (PSSSA). Relative 

to the January Governor’s Budget, Prop. 98 funding at May Revision is up by $78.4 million in 2017-18, $278 million in 2018-

19, and $389.3 million in 2019-20. The Governor maintains the same education priorities with some funding adjustments, but 

with the entire $389.3 million of new Prop. 98 funding going into the PSSSA. The large funding priorities as of May:  

  

 

 

 $2 billion in Prop 98 funding dedicated to the statutory COLA of 3.26%; 

 
 $3.15 billion non-Prop 98 funds toward debt payments to the CalSTRS 

liability for school employers;  

 

 

 $696.2 million ongoing for Prop 98 special education; and 

 
 $1.5 billion in state bonds to allow agencies greater access to funds for facilities projects. 

 

 

 
 



    

SCOE 2019-2020 Adopted Budget Narrative 
Page 3 of 7 

The state-required reserve for economic uncertainty represents only a few weeks of payroll. The Government Finance Officers 

Association recommends reserve, at minimum, equal to two months of average general fund operating expenditures, or about 

17%. In determining an appropriate level of reserves, districts should consider multiple external and local factors including 

but not limited to: 

 State and federal economic forecasts and volatility  

 Unknown impacts of federal tax reform on state revenue 

 Forecasted revenue changes versus projected expenditure increases in budget and multiyear 

projection years 

 Ending balance impact of various district enrollment scenarios  

 Cash flow requirements and the relationship between budgeted reserves and actual cash on hand  

 Savings for future one-time planned expenditures  

 Protection against unanticipated/unbudgeted expenditures  

 Offset unfunded liabilities 

 Credit ratings and long-term borrowing costs  

 

 

 

 

 
 

  



    

SCOE 2019-2020 Adopted Budget Narrative 
Page 4 of 7 

GENERAL FUND 
 

REVENUE 

Below are the changes in revenue projections since the second interim and are reflected in the 2018/19 

Estimated Actuals. 

 

Local Control Funding Formula 

Local Control Funding Formula had an increase of $29,035.  

 

Federal Revenue 

Federal Revenue is projected to increase by $2,711 for the following reasons:  

 

             Favorable         

Funding Description             (Unfavorable) 

 NCLB RS3020 Discontinued          ($ 6,636) 

 SpEd IDEA RS3310 Local Assist $15,538 

 SpEd IDEA RS3315  Preschl grant $     277 

 SpEd IDEA RS3320–No longer funded ($6,708) 

 SpEd IDEA RS3327 Mental Health $     255 

 SpEd IDEA RS 3345 Preschl Staff Dev ($      15) 

Net Change    $2,711 
 

State Revenue 

State Revenues decreased by ($17,777) for the following reason: 

 

       Favorable         

Funding Description            (Unfavorable) 

 Unrestricted Lottery   ($    441) 

 Restricted Lottery   ($    202) 

 Special Education RS6500  ($19,676) 

 SpEd RS6512 MH Svcs   $   1,956 

 Classified Prof’l Dev   $     586 

Net Change   ($17,777) 

 

Local Revenue 

Local Revenues increased $14,000 for projected interest revenues.  

 

 

 



    

SCOE 2019-2020 Adopted Budget Narrative 
Page 5 of 7 

 

 
 

Description 2015-2016 

Actuals 

2016-2017 

Actuals 

2017-2018 

Actuals 

2018-2019 

Estimated 

Actuals 

2019-2020 

Adopted 

Budget 

LCFF Resources $815,910 $775,048 $809,962 $845,086 $874,121 

Federal  503,545 162,670 200,056 149,565 152,276 

Other State 701,812 688,441 717,679 594,847 577,070 

Other Local 191,865 340,611 307,293 307,293 321,293 

Transfer-in SRS 54,498 13,360 13,360 53,846 53,056 

Total $2,267,630 $1,980,130 $2,048,350 $1,950,637 $1,977,816 

 

EXPENDITURES 

 

General Fund Expenditures 
Expenditures increased by $243,301 (General Fund, Unrestricted/Restricted, Page 1) from the 2018-19 

Estimated Actuals. 

 

 

LCFF Sources; 
$874,121; 44%

Federal ; $152,276; 
8%

Other State; 
$577,070; 29%

Other Local; 
$321,293; 16%

Fund 16 - Transfer In; $53,056; 
3%

Total Resources $1,977,816

Certificated; 
$602,590; 26%

Classified; 
$476,594; 21%Benefits; 

$484,818; 21%

Books & 
Supplies; 

$68,321; 3%

Services & 
Operating; 

$624,949; 27%

Capital Outlay; 
$35,000; 1%

Outgo to 
District; 

$29,929; 1%

Total Expenses  $2,322,201



    

SCOE 2019-2020 Adopted Budget Narrative 
Page 6 of 7 

 

 

Expenditures Comparison  

Description 2015-2016 

Actuals 

2016-2017 

Actuals 

2017-2018 

Actuals 

2018-2019 

Estimated 

Actuals 

2019-2020 

Adopted 

Budget 

Certificated $  377,398 $  504,973 $  558,519 $  618,317 $  602,590 

Classified 343,329 374,437 388,965 419,359 476,594 

Benefits               330,649 418,617 471,807 499,172 484,818 

Books & Supplies 29,150 46,569 91,635 81,801 68,321 

Services & 

Operating 

402,702 503,111 661,980 581,260 624,949 

Capital Outlay 6,264 81,843 42,664 335,664 35,000 

Other Outgo 389,641 17,424 24,428 29,929 29,929 

Total $1,879,133 $1,946,974 2,239,998 2,565,502 2,322,201 

 

 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Projected Ending Fund Balance 

2015-16 $2,694,339 actuals  

2016-17 $2,698,358 actuals 

2017-18 $2,846,059 actuals 

2018-19 $2,231,194 estimated actuals 

2019-20 $1,866,809 projected 

 

 

 

Personnel  FTE 

Certificated  4.83 

Superintendent    .15 

Administrative  3.60  21.11 FTE 

Classified             9.53 

Confidential  3.00 

 

 

Direct Services Contracted to provide special education services  

Speech 

Occupational Therapy 

Adapted P.E. 

Public Nurse 

 

 

 

 

Fiscal Year Amount 

2015-16 actuals 388,497 

2016-17 actuals 36,578 

2017-18 actuals 115,142 

2018-19 estimated actuals (614,865) 

2019-20 projected (344,385) 



    

SCOE 2019-2020 Adopted Budget Narrative 
Page 7 of 7 

Comments 

 

1. COLA of 3.26% on LCFF. 

2. Certificated health and welfare (H/W) soft cap selected plan employee range (14,398.50 to 

17,536.50);   Certificated employees hired effective 2017/18 hard capped at $17,536; all other 

employees H/W is capped at $17,536. H/W cost is $270,852. 

3. PERS rate increase from 18.062% to 20.8%, for a projected annual cost of $89,597. 

4. STRS rate increase from 16.28% to 18.13%.for a projected annual cost of $123,204. 

5. Reimburse Sierra-Plumas JUSD to provide business, curriculum, and technology services. 

6. Forest Reserve Revenue budget is $53,056. 

7. Positive Certification 

8. Projected ending cash balance: $1,886,809 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Reviewed By:

Year: 18/19 19/20 Pos (Neg) % 18/19 19/20 Pos (Neg) % 18/19 19/20 Pos (Neg) %

Period:

Estimated 

Actuals

Adopted 

Budget Difference Change

Estimated 

Actuals

Adopted 

Budget Difference Change

Estimated 

Actuals

Adopted 

Budget Difference Change

Revenues

LCFF Revenues 8010-8099 845,086       874,121       29,035         3.44% -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! 845,086       874,121       29,035         3.44%

Federal Revenues 8100-8299 -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! 149,565       152,276       2,711           1.81% 149,565       152,276       2,711           1.81%

State Revenues 8300-8599 6,300           5,859           (441)            -7.00% 588,547       571,211       (17,336)        -2.95% 594,847       577,070       (17,777)        -2.99%

Local Revenues 8600-8799 302,793       316,793       14,000         4.62% 4,500           4,500           -                  0.00% 307,293       321,293       14,000         4.56%

Total Revenues 1,154,179     1,196,773     42,594         3.69% 742,612       727,987       (14,625)        -1.97% 1,896,791     1,924,760     27,969         1.47%

Expenditures

Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 268,279       292,154       23,875         8.90% 350,038       310,436       (39,602)       -11.31% 6 618,317       602,590       (15,727)        -2.54%

Classified Salaries 2000-2999 262,539       295,735       33,196         12.64% 1 156,820       180,859       24,039         15.33% 7 419,359       476,594       57,235         13.65%

Benefits & Taxes 3000-3999 294,945       281,108       (13,837)        -4.69% 204,227       203,710       (517)            -0.25% 499,172       484,818       (14,354)        -2.88%

Materials & Supplies 4000-4999 29,880         20,178         (9,702)         -32.47% 2 51,921         48,143         (3,778)         -7.28% 81,801         68,321         (13,480)        -16.48%

Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 376,453       381,204       4,751           1.26% 204,807       243,745       38,938         19.01% 8 581,260       624,949       43,689         7.52%

Capital Outlay 6000-6599 313,000       35,000         (278,000)     -88.82% 3 22,664         -                  (22,664)       -100.00% 9 335,664       35,000         (300,664)     -89.57%

Other Outgo 7xxx's 24,428         24,428         -                  0.00% 5,501           5,501           -                  0.00% 29,929         29,929         -                  0.00%

Other Outgo 7300-7399 (6,080)          (2,736)          3,344          -55.00% 4 6,080           2,736           (3,344)         -55.00% 4 -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0!

Total Expenditures 1,563,444     1,327,071     (236,373)      -15.12% 1,002,058     995,130       (6,928)          -0.69% 2,565,502     2,322,201     (243,301)      -9.48%

Rev less Exp (409,265)      (130,298)      278,967       -68.16% (259,446)      (267,143)      (7,697)          2.97% (668,711)      (397,441)      271,270       -40.57%

Other Sources/Uses

Transfers In 8910-8979 53,846         53,056         (790)            -1.47% -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! 53,846         53,056         (790)            -1.47%

Contributions 8980-8999 (227,456)      (267,143)      (39,687)       17.45% 5 227,456       267,143       39,687         17.45% 5 -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0!

Transfers Out 7610-7699 -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0!

Total Other Sources (173,610)      (214,087)      (40,477)        23.31% 227,456       267,143       39,687         17.45% 53,846         53,056         (790)             -1.47%

Change in Fund Bal (582,875)     (344,385)     238,490       -40.92% (31,990)        -                 31,990         -100.00% (614,865)      (344,385)     270,480       -43.99%

Beg Fund Bal 2,814,069     2,231,194     (582,875)      -20.71% 31,990         -                  (31,990)        -100.00% 2,846,059     2,231,194     (614,865)      -21.60%

Adjustments -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! -                  #DIV/0!

Adj Beg Fund Bal 2,814,069     2,231,194     (582,875)      -20.71% 31,990         -                  (31,990)        -100.00% 2,846,059     2,231,194     (614,865)      -21.60%

End Fund Bal 2,231,194     1,886,809     (344,385)      -15.44% -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! 2,231,194     1,886,809    (344,385)      -15.44%

Non Spendable 500              500              -                  -                  500              500              -                  

Restricted  -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0! -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0!

Comitted -                  #DIV/0! -                  #DIV/0! -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0!

OPEB 103,374       93,849         (9,525)         -                  103,374       93,849         (9,525)         

Assigned -                  #DIV/0! -                  #DIV/0! -                  -                  -                  #DIV/0!

Deferred Maintenance 50,000         50,000         -                  -                  50,000         50,000         

REU 257,000       232,000       (25,000)       -                  257,000       232,000       (25,000)       

Unassigned 1,870,320    1,510,460     (359,860)     -19.24% -                 -                 -                 #DIV/0! 1,870,320    1,510,460     (359,860)     -19.24%

REU is: 10.0% 10.0%

Tickmark Legend

Unrestricted Restricted Total

2019/20 Adopted Budget

Sierra County Office of Education

Gen Fund Budget Comparison Worksheet



1 Salary Increase for step and column plus 2.5% negotiated salary schedule increase. Academic Advisor position increase. Expenditures increase approx $33k

2 Unrestricted Lottery Materials & Supplies expenditures reduced approx. <$9,700>

3 Unrestricted Capitol Outlay reduced approx <$278k> due to completion of planned capitol improvements in 18/19.

4 Indirect Cost Rate reduction due to a lowered allowable ICR maximum from CDE. Reduced from 0.87% to 0.41% for 19/20.

5 Contribution from Unrestricted General Fund to Restricted General Fund due to increase required in anticipated Special Education program expenditures.

6 Restricted Certificated positions reduced due to staffing shifts and assignment adjustments. Expenditures reduced approx <$39k>

7 Restricted Classified increased for Special Education Speech position, negotiated increase in salary schedule of 2.5% plus step/column increases. Expenditures increased approx $24k

8 Restricted Operating Expenditures reduced due to contracted speech position shifting to classified staff position. Reduced approx <$39k>

9 Reduction of restricted Capital Outlay due to completion of Prop 39 program funding.

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

Sierra County Office of Education

2019/20 Adopted Budget



Sierra County Office of Education

2019/20 Adopted Budget

Unrestricted Restricted Combined Unrestricted Restricted Combined Unrestricted Restricted Combined

A B C D E F G H I

Revenues

LCFF Revenues 8010-8099 874,121        -               874,121         900,294       -            900,294       925,456       -              925,456        

Federal Revenues 8100-8299 -               152,276        152,276         -              152,276     152,276       -              152,276       152,276        

State Revenues 8300-8599 5,859           571,211        577,070         5,859           571,211     577,070       5,859           571,211       577,070        

Local Revenues 8600-8799 316,793        4,500           321,293         316,793       4,500         321,293       316,793       4,500           321,293        

Transfers In 8910-8979 53,056          -               53,056           53,056         -            53,056         53,056         -              53,056          

Contributions 8980-8999 (267,143)       267,143        -                (288,136)      288,136     -              (307,997)      307,997       -               

Total Revenues 982,686        995,130        1,977,816       987,866       1,016,123   2,003,989     993,167       1,035,984     2,029,151     

Expenditures

Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 292,154        310,436        602,590         299,458       318,197     617,655       306,945       326,152       633,097        

Classified Salaries 2000-2999 295,735        180,859        476,594         310,083       185,076     495,159       321,603       195,067       516,670        

Benefits & Taxes 3000-3999 281,108        203,710        484,818         290,900       212,725     503,625       294,962       214,640       509,602        

Materials & Supplies 4000-4999 20,178          48,143         68,321           20,178         48,143       68,321         20,178         48,143         68,321          

Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 381,204        243,745        624,949         381,204       243,745     624,949       381,204       243,745       624,949        

Capital Outlay 6000-6599 35,000          -               35,000           35,000         -            35,000         35,000         -              35,000          

Other Outgo 7xxx's 24,428          5,501           29,929           24,428         5,501         29,929         24,428         5,501           29,929          

Other Outgo 7300-7399 (2,736)          2,736           -                (2,736)          2,736         -              (2,736)          2,736           -               

Transfers Out 7600-7629 -               -               -                -              -            -              -              -              -               

Total Expenditures 1,327,071     995,130        2,322,201       1,358,515    1,016,123   2,374,638     1,381,584     1,035,984     2,417,568     

Rev less Exp (344,385)       -               (344,385)        (370,649)      -            (370,649)      (388,417)      -              (388,417)       

Change in Fund Bal (344,385)      -              (344,385)       (370,649)     -            (370,649)     (388,417)      -              (388,417)      

Beg Fund Bal 2,231,194     -               2,231,194       1,886,809    -            1,886,809     1,516,160     -              1,516,160     

Adjustments -               -               -                -            -              -              -               

Adj Beg Fund Bal 2,231,194     -               2,231,194       1,886,809    -            1,886,809     1,516,160     -              1,516,160     

End Fund Bal 1,886,809     -              1,886,809      1,516,160    -            1,516,160     1,127,743    -              1,127,743     

Non Spendable 500              -               500                500             -            500              500              -              500              

Restricted  -               -               -                -            -              -              -               

Comitted

OPEB 93,849          -               93,849           92,485         -            92,485         92,485         -              92,485          

Assigned

Deferred Maintenance 50,000          -               50,000           100,000       100,000       150,000       150,000        

REU 232,000        -               232,000         235,000       -            235,000       235,000       -              235,000        

Unassigned 1,510,460     -              1,510,460       1,280,660    -            1,280,660    892,243       -              892,243       

Budget MYP MYP

Multi Year Projection

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22































































































































































































2020-07C 
1 

 
LEASE AGREEMENT 

 

PREAMBLE: PARTIES AND PREMISES 

 CRAIG MCHENRY, herein called “Lessor,” hereby leases to THE SIERRA COUNTY 

SCHOOLS FOR ADULTS, a public entity, herein called “Lessee,” all of those certain premises, 

herein called “said premises,” consisting of 2,350 square feet of that certain building, 

known as the “bank building,” located at 604 Main Street in the City of Loyalton, County of 

Sierra, State of California, EXCEPT the portion of the building marked “Exhibit A” leased to 

Plumas Bank for its ATM, on the following terms and conditions. 

1. TERM 

The term of this lease shall be for the period of ten (10) years, commencing at 12:01 

A.M. on June 12, 2019, and ending at 12:01 A.M. on June 12, 2029, unless sooner terminated 

as herein provided. 

2. HOLD OVER 

Should Lessee hold over and continue in possession of said premises after 

expiration of the term of this lease or any extension thereof, Lessee’s continued occupancy 

of said premises shall be considered a month-to-month tenancy subject to all the terms and 

conditions of this lease, unless otherwise agreed upon by both parties.  

3. RENT 

Lessee agrees to pay to the Lessor base rent for the use and occupancy of said 

premises the sum of ONE THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED DOLLARS ($1,600.00) per month, 

commencing June 12, 2021. All monthly payments shall be paid to the Lessor, Craig 



2020-07C 
2 

 
McHenry, at P.O. Box 925, Loyalton, California 96118, or at such other place as the Lessor 

may designate in writing.  

4. BASE RENT CALCULATION 

      Lessor and Lessee agree that the base monthly rent for said premises has been 

reduced below actual market rent to reflect Lessor’s entitlement to a property tax 

exemption claim for the premises. The parties agree that by calculating the base monthly 

rental at $1,600.00 per month, any property tax benefits obtained by Lessor’s filing of an 

exemption claim have already been passed on to the Lessor pursuant to Sections 202.2 and 

206.2 of the California Revenue and Taxation Code. 

5.  COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 

The base rent set forth above shall be adjusted at the end of each twelve (12)-month 

period during the term of this Agreement with the first such adjustment beginning on June 

12, 2022. The base figure shall be the average of the indices for the twelve calendar months 

prior to June 12, 2022, shown in the State of California, Department of Industrial Relations’ 

Consumer Price Index (CPI), with a base year of 1984 = 100 as published by the U.S. 

Department of Labor. The base figure shall be updated annually to the new twelve (12)-

month average of each successive year. As of June 12th of each year during the Agreement, 

the base rent shall be adjusted by the same ratio, which the base rent bears to the CPI 

adjustment. If the described index shall no longer be published, another similar index 

reflecting consumer prices and generally recognized as authoritative shall be substituted 

by agreement of the parties. 

 

 



2020-07C 
3 

 
6.  NONAPPROPRIATION OF FUNDS 

 This lease may be terminated at the end of any fiscal year in the event the Lessee 

receives during the annual budget process insufficient funds for the lease of the subject 

property in the subsequent year. In such a case, Lessee may give notice to Lessor ninety 

(90) days in advance of the proposed date for termination of the lease, and Lessee shall 

remain responsible for all lease payments to the termination date notwithstanding the lack 

of funding. In the event that Lessee terminates the lease under this provision, Lessee 

covenants that it shall not thereafter lease any substitute office space in Loyalton, 

California, for at least twelve (12) months from the termination date of this lease. 

7. USE OF PREMISES 

 Said premises shall be used for adult education purposes by Lessee and for no other 

use or uses without the express written consent of Lessor. 

8.  PROHIBITED USES 

 The premises hereby leased shall not be used for any other unlawful purpose during 

the term of the Lease, and the Lessee agrees to comply with all federal, state, county, and 

city ordinances, laws, and regulations, present or future, affecting the use of the type of 

business to be carried on in the demised premises. The Lessee shall not use the leased 

premises in a manner that shall increase the rates for or cause the cancellation of any fire, 

liability, or other insurance policy insuring said premises. Lessee shall not commit or 

permit the commission of any waste on said premises. 

9.  PAYMENT OF UTILITY CHARGES 

 Lessee shall pay and hold Lessor free and harmless from all charges for the 

furnishing of propane, gas, electricity, water, telephone service, garbage, and solid waste 



2020-07C 
4 

 
fees, and all other utilities of every type and nature whatsoever used in or about said 

premises at Lessee’s own proper cost and expense, and shall indemnify the Lessor against 

any liability on such account. Lessor shall be under no obligation to furnish or pay for any 

such utilities. Lessee understands that the bank building does not have separately metered 

utilities for each tenant. Lessee agrees to pay its pro-rata share of all of the above utilities 

with the existing co-tenant Plumas Bank ATM machine in the bank building. Said pro-rata 

share shall be based on the square footage leased by each tenant and the amount of 

electricity currently used by Plumas Bank. 

10.  TAXES 

 All real property taxes and assessments levied or assessed against said premises by 

any governmental entity including any special assessments imposed on or against said 

premises for the construction or improvement of public works in, on or about said 

premises shall be paid by Lessor. However, Lessee shall reimburse Lessor for any solid 

waste benefit assessment or fee charged against the bank building. Lessee shall 

additionally pay all taxes, assessments, or other charges levied or imposed by any 

governmental entity on the furniture, trade fixtures, appliances, and other personal 

property placed by Lessee in, on, or about said premises, including without limiting the 

generality of the other terms used in this section, any shelves, counters, sales, partitions, 

fixtures, machinery, plant equipment, office equipment, and television, radio antennae, and 

communication equipment brought on said premises by Lessee.  

11.  CONDITION OF PREMISES 

 Lessee accepts said premises, as well as the improvements thereon and the facilities 

appurtenant thereto, in their present condition. Lessee further agrees with and represents 



2020-07C 
5 

 
to Lessor that said Lessee has inspected the premises and that said premises are being 

leased by Lessee as a result of his inspection and investigation. 

12.  ALTERATIONS 

 It is understood and agreed that Lessee may desire to make certain remodeling and 

improvements in the leased premises. Lessee may remodel and improve the premises, 

provided Lessee receives prior consent from Lessor for all such remodeling and 

improvements. Lessor shall consent to all such remodeling and improvements to the 

premises provided such remodeling and improvements are done in a reasonable and 

workmanlike manner. Any alteration, addition, or improvement to the leased premises 

made by Lessee that is permanently affixed to the leasehold premises shall become the 

property of the Lessor upon the termination of this lease and shall be surrendered with the 

premises. All trade fixtures and/or equipment that shall have been installed in the leased 

premises by Lessee that are not permanently affixed thereto, shall continue to be the 

property of Lessee and may be removed by Lessee at the expiration or termination of this 

lease or any renewal of extension thereof; provided, however, Lessee shall at its own 

expense repair any injury to the premises resulting from such removal. Lessee shall 

indemnify Lessor against any mechanics’ liens or other liens arising out of the making of 

any alteration, repair, addition, or improvement by Lessee and shall hold Lessor harmless 

of any such liens or claims, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs that may be 

incurred in removing any such liens. 

13.  MAINTENANCE 

 Lessee at its own cost and expense shall maintain and repair the exterior roof, 

exterior walls, and the parking area during the term of the lease. Lessee shall also at its own 



2020-07C 
6 

 
cost and expense maintain and repair the electric and plumbing fixtures, heating and air 

conditioning units, painting, glass replacement, doors, snow removal, and all other repairs 

or maintenance of every kind, nature, and description. 

 Lessee shall not be held responsible for any damages of any kind to the equipment 

or part of the premises that is owned and/or leased by Plumas Bank as described in 

“Exhibit A.” 

14.  LESSOR’S RIGHT OF ENTRY 

 Lessee shall permit Lessor or Lessor’s agents or representatives to enter said 

premises at all reasonable times for the purpose of inspecting said premises to determine 

the state of repair or alteration that shall or may be necessary for the safety or preservation 

of the leased property or to perform Lessor’s duties under this lease. 

15.  SURRENDER OF PREMISES 

 On expiration or sooner termination of this lease or any extensions or renewals of 

this lease, Lessee shall promptly surrender and deliver said premises to Lessor in as good 

condition as they are now at the date of this lease, reasonable wear and tear excepted. 

Upon the termination of this lease, the Lessee shall remove any signs or equipment owned 

by Lessee from the leased premises, promptly repairing any damage or injury done to the 

premises by such removal and restoration of said premises to the condition above 

described. 

16.  INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION 

 Throughout the term of this lease, Lessee shall indemnify and hold Lessor harmless 

from any and all damages, injuries, or claims arising from using the leased premises for 

adult education or any subsequent use. The Lessee shall maintain adequate fire insurance 



2020-07C 
7 

 
coverage for the replacement cost of the leased building. Lessee shall also maintain public 

liability coverage in amounts not less than an aggregate amount of $5,000,000.00, which 

coverage shall be maintained during the term of this lease. Lessee shall make Lessor an 

additional insured and shall provide Lessor with a certificate of insurance coverage. 

Neither Lessor nor Lessee shall be liable to the other for any business interruption or any 

loss or damage to property or injury to or death of person occurring on the leased property 

of the adjoining property, or in any manner growing out of or connected with the Lessee’s 

use and occupation of the leased property, whether or not caused by the negligence or 

other fault of Lessor or Lessee or of their respective agents, employees, subtenants, 

licensees, or assignees.  This release shall apply only to the extent that such business 

interruption, loss, or damage to property or injury to or death of persons is covered by 

insurance, regardless of whether such insurance is payable or protects Lessor or Lessee or 

both. Nothing in this paragraph shall be construed to impose any other or greater liability 

upon either Lessor or Lessee than would have existed in the absence of this paragraph. This 

release shall be in effect only so long as the applicable insurance policies contain a clause to 

the effect that this release shall not affect the right of the insured to recover under such 

policies. 

17.  QUIET ENJOYMENT 

 Lessor covenants and warrants that if the Lessee shall faithfully and fully discharge 

the obligations herein set forth, the Lessee shall have and enjoy during the term of this 

Lease, a quiet and undisturbed possession of the leased premises, together with all of its 

appurtenances. However, Lessee agrees to allow access through the front door of said 

leased premises to representatives of Plumas Bank for purposes of servicing the ATM 



2020-07C 
8 

 
machine and using the restroom on the leased premises. Said nonpublic access shall be for 

the use by employees of Plumas Bank only.  

18. DESTRUCTION 

 It is understood and agreed that if the building upon the leased premises shall be 

destroyed by fire, the elements, riots, insurrections, explosions, or any other cause or be so 

damaged thereby that it becomes untenantable and cannot be rendered tenantable within 

(sixty) 60 days from the date of such damage, this Lease may be terminated by either 

Lessor or Lessee; provided, however, that in the event the building is so damaged, the 

Lessee shall not be required to pay the rental herein provided during the term the leased 

premises are wholly unfit for occupancy. In the event that only a portion of said premises 

have been damaged or become untenantable, then the rental during the period that said 

premises remain partially untenantable shall be reduced in the proportion that the 

untenantable portion of said premises bear to the total thereof; provided that if said 

partially tenantable premises cannot be rendered fully tenantable within sixty (60) days 

from the date of said damage, this Lease can be terminated either by Lessor or Lessee. 

19.  DEFAULT 

  Timely and strict faithful performance of each and every one of the conditions of 

this lease agreement is expressly made the essence of this lease agreement. If default be 

made by the Lessee in the payment of any part of the rent when the same shall become due, 

or if default be made by the Lessee in keeping, performing, or observing any of the 

covenants and agreements herein contained, and such default shall remain so for a period 

of thirty (30) days after written notice shall have been sent by certified mail to Lessee, then 

in such event the Lessor, at his election, may declare said term and lease agreement 



2020-07C 
9 

 
forfeited and ended and re-enter said leased property again to repossess the same. The 

effect of such default shall in itself, at the election of the Lessor, without further notice or 

demand, constitute a forfeiture and termination of this lease agreement, and if thereafter 

the Lessee shall fail to surrender possession of the leased property to the Lessor, Lessee 

shall be deemed guilty of an unlawful and forcible detention of the premises. Any re-entry 

or forfeiture of the lease agreement shall not work a forfeiture of the rent agreed to be paid 

by the Lessee, but Lessee agrees to pay for the term of the Lease, to the Lessor, the 

difference between the amount to be paid as rent herein reserved and the amount of rent 

that can be collected and received upon the leased premises for such months during the 

residue of the term of this Lease or renewal thereof remaining after taking of possession by 

the Lessor. The remedies herein set forth shall be considered optional remedies and not a 

waiver of any right or remedy that the lessor would otherwise have at law or in equity to 

enforce the performance of this Agreement, or to recover damages for breach thereof.  

20.  SUBLEASING OR ASSIGNMENT 

 Lessee shall not encumber, assign, or otherwise transfer this lease, any right or 

interest in this lease, or any right or interest in said premises without the express written 

consent of Lessor. Neither shall Lessee sublet said premises or any part thereof without the 

prior written consent of Lessor. The consent of Lessor to any assignment of Lessee’s 

interest in this lease or the subletting by Lessee of said premises or parts of said premises 

shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

 Within 90 days of execution of this agreement, Lessor agrees to create a wall barrier 

encompassing the area marked as “Exhibit A” in this agreement.  

 



2020-07C 
10 

 
21.  NOTICES 

 All notices required to be given to Lessee under the terms of this agreement shall be 

given by depositing a copy of such notice in the United States mail, postage prepaid, 

certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to Lessee at the leased premises, or to 

such other address as the Lessee shall direct by a writing delivered to the Lessor. 

22.  MODIFICATION 

 This Lease Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties and may 

not be modified or changed orally, but only by an agreement in writing and signed by the 

party against whom enforcement of any waiver, change, modification, or discharge is 

sought. 

23.  BINDING ON SUCCESSORS 

 It is expressly agreed that the provisions, stipulations, terms, covenants, conditions, 

and undertakings in this lease and any renewals thereof shall inure to the benefit of and 

bind the heirs, executors, administrators, and assigns or successors in interest of both the 

Lessor and the Lessee. 

24.  TIME OF ESSENCE 

 Time is expressly declared to be the essence of this lease. 

25.  WAIVER 

 The waiver of any breach of any of the provisions of this lease by Lessor shall not 

constitute a continuing waiver of a subsequent breach by Lessee either of the same or of 

another provision of this lease.  

 

 



2020-07C 
11 

 
26.  SOLE AND ONLY AGREEMENT 

 This instrument constitutes the sole and only agreement between Lessor and Lessee 

respecting said premises or the leasing of said premises to Lessee and correctly sets forth 

the obligations of Lessor and Lessee to each other as of its date. Any agreements or 

representations respecting said premises or their leasing by Lessor to Lessee not expressly 

set forth in this instrument are null and void.  

 EXECUTED in duplicate on ____________________________, 2019 at Loyalton, Sierra County, 

California. 

 

LESSOR 

 

_______________________________________________________ 
CRAIG MCHENRY 
 

LESSEE 

SIERRA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 

 

_______________________________________________________ 
MERRILL GRANT, Sierra County Superintendent 

 



Page 1 of 2 
 

CSBA POLICY GUIDE SHEET – June 2019 
 
BP/AR 0420.4 – Charter School Authorization –Revise or DELETE?? 
(BP/AR revised) 

Policy updated to delete the legal cite for the Parent Empowerment Act, as the criteria for that program 
include the Academic Performance Index which is no longer calculated, and to delete the outdated legal cite 
for California Department of Education (CDE) standards for the identification of academically low-achieving 
students. Policy also reflects NEW LAW (SB 126, 2019) which requires charter schools to comply with the 
Brown Act, California Public Records Act, and other specified state laws governing transparency and public 
integrity, and NEW LAW (AB 406, 2018) which, for any charter petition submitted on or after July 1, 2019, 
prohibits the charter school from operating as or by a for-profit corporation or organization. Regulation 
updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 1747, 2018) which requires that the charter petition include provisions 
for the development and annual update of a school safety plan. 

 
AR 7160 – Charter School Facilities –Keep or DELETE?? 
 
 
BP/AR 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees 
(BP/AR revised) 

Policy updated to reflect a court decision which held that a district cannot bar criticism of employees at public 
board meetings, and to add referral of complainants to the appropriate complaint procedures when concerns 
are expressed at a board meeting or to an individual board member outside a board meeting. Policy includes 
material formerly in AR regarding reports against employees for child abuse or neglect, and adds 
circumstances under which complaints should be addressed in accordance with BP/AR 1312.3 - Uniform 
Complaint Procedures or AR 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment. Policy also adds material related to 
the investigation of a complaint, including an anonymous complaint, and includes material formerly in AR 
regarding appeals to the board. Regulation reorganized and updated to require that complaints be made in 
writing and to add steps regarding the investigation of the complaint and the notification of the complainant 
and employee regarding the final decision. 

 
 
BP/AR 3250 - Transportation Fees 
(BP/AR revised) 

Policy updated to reference types of transportation services, in addition to home-to-school transportation, for 
which fees may be charged. The basis for establishing the amount of the fee deleted in BP since it is addressed 
in AR. Policy also adds material formerly in AR regarding (1) criteria for determining exemption of 
transportation fees based on financial need and (2) board certification to the county superintendent of schools 
that fees have been levied in accordance with law. Regulation reorganized to describe the types of 
transportation services for which fees are allowed, the amount of the fee, and then exemptions from fees. 
Material regarding the establishment of fees revised to reflect current practice which is no longer based on 
the Superintendent of Public Instruction's determination of the statewide average nonsubsidized cost of 
providing transportation on a publicly owned or operated transit system. 

 
 
BP/AR 3540 - Transportation 
(BP revised; AR deleted) 

Policy updated to include material formerly in AR regarding the means of transportation, contracts for 
transportation services, and the option to pay parents/guardians their actual and necessary expenses in 
transporting the student. Policy also addresses (1) the district's authority to require families to pay a 
transportation fee, with specified exceptions; (2) the district's authority to transport students without 
parent/guardian permission when evacuation of students is necessary for their safety; and (3) the installation 
of a global positioning system on school buses to enhance safety and provide real-time location data. 
Regulation deleted and key concepts moved to BP. 

 
 
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

BP/AR 6142.1 - Sexual Health and HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction 
(BP/AR revised) 

Policy updated to more directly reflect the goals of the California Healthy Youth Act, incorporate the legal 
requirement for districts whose graduation requirements include completion of a health education course to 
include instruction on the affirmative consent standard, and reflect NEW LAW (SB 1104, 2018) which 
requires districts offering grades 6-12 to provide information on human trafficking prevention resources to 
parents/guardians by January 1, 2020. Policy also adds timeline for notification to parents/guardians that they 
may request to excuse their child from comprehensive sexual health and HIV prevention education. 
Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 1861, 2018) which requires that comprehensive sexual health 
education include specified information regarding human trafficking, and NEW LAW (AB 1868, 2018) 
which authorizes instruction regarding the potential risks and consequences of electronically sharing 
suggestive or sexually explicit materials. Section on "Professional Development" updated to reflect a legal 
requirement to provide periodic staff development regarding sexual abuse and human trafficking.  

 
 
BP 6142.6 - Visual and Performing Arts Education 
(BP revised) 

Policy updated to reflect revised content standards for visual and performing arts, including media arts, 
adopted by the State Board of Education in January 2019. Policy incorporates the philosophical foundation, 
lifelong goals, and artistic processes upon which the state standards are based. 

 
 
BP 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements 
(BP revised) 

Policy includes minor revision to clarify that immigrant students enrolled in a newcomer program in grades 
11-12 may be eligible for an exemption from locally established graduation requirements, regardless of 
whether they transferred between schools after the completion of the second year of high school. 

 



1 
**Revisions or DELETE??? 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 
Philosophy, Goals, Objectives, and Comprehensive Plans  
BP 0420.4 
 
CHARTER SCHOOL AUTHORIZATION 
 

Note:  The following optional policy may be revised to reflect district practice. Education Code 47600-47616.7 
authorize the establishment of a capped number of public charter schools, which are generally exempt from 
Education Code provisions governing school districts unless otherwise specified in law. To establish a charter 
school within the district, petitioners must submit to the Governing Board for approval a petition which includes 
all components required by law as described in the accompanying administrative regulation. 
 
Under certain circumstances, charter petitions may also be approved by other governmental entities. For example,  
Education Code 47605.5-47605.6 authorize petitioners to submit a petition directly to the County Board of 
Education when (1) the charter school will serve students for whom the county office of education would otherwise 
be responsible for providing direct education and related services or (2) the countywide program will provide 
educational services to a student population that cannot be served as well by a charter school operating in only one 
district in the county. 

 
In addition, Education Code 47605.8 authorizes petitioners to submit a petition directly to the State Board of 
Education (SBE) to approve a "statewide benefit charter school" that may operate at multiple sites throughout the 
state.  5 CCR 11967.6.1 requires the petitioner to provide prior written notice to the board of each district where 
the petitioner proposes to locate a school site and to notify the board of the date that SBE will meet to consider the 
petition. 
 
Pursuant to Education Code 47606, a district may petition the Superintendent of Public Instruction and the SBE to 
convert all its schools to charter schools, provided that 50 percent of the district's teachers sign the petition, the 
petition contains all specified components, and arrangements are made for alternative attendance of students 
residing within the district who choose not to attend charter schools. 
 
For further information regarding the submission and review of charter school petitions, see CSBA's publication 
Charter Schools:  A Guide for Governance Teams. 

 
The Governing Board recognizes that charter schools may assist the district in offering diverse 
learning opportunities for students. In considering any petition to establish a charter school within 
the district, the Board shall give thoughtful consideration to the potential of the charter school to 
provide students with a high-quality education that enables them to achieve to their fullest 
potential. 
 
The district shall not require any district student to attend the charter school nor shall it require any 
district employee to work at the charter school.  (Education Code 47605) 
 

Note:  Education Code 47605 allows for the conversion of an existing public school into a charter school, provided 
that the school adopts and maintains a policy giving admission preference to students who reside within the former 
attendance area of that public school. The Board may also approve a start-up charter school. The signature 
requirement for petitions differs depending on whether the petition is for the approval of a conversion or start-up 
charter school; see the accompanying administrative regulation. 

 



2 
 

One or more persons may submit a petition for a start-up charter school to be established within 
the district or for the conversion of an existing district school to a charter school.  (Education Code 
47605) 
 
Any petition for a start-up charter school or conversion charter school shall include all components 
and signatures required by law and shall be submitted to the Board. The Superintendent or designee 
shall consult with legal counsel, as appropriate, regarding compliance of the charter petition with 
legal requirements. 
 
The Superintendent or designee may work with charter school petitioners prior to the formal 
submission of the petition in order to gather information about the proposal and suggest 
components that would alignensure compliance of the petition with the district's vision and goals 
for student learning.legal requirements. As needed, he/shethe Superintendent or designee may 
workalso meet with the petitioners to establish workable plans for technical assistance or 
contracted services which the district may provide to the proposed charter school. 
 
Within 30 days of receiving a petition to establish a charter school, the Board shall hold a public 
hearing to determine the level of support for the petition by teachers, other employees of the 
district, and parents/guardians.  (Education Code 47605) 
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 
 
Within 60 days of receiving a petition, or within 90 days with mutual consent of the petitioners 
and the Board, the Board shall either approve or deny the request to establish the charter school.  
(Education Code 47605) 
 
The approval or denial of a charter petition shall not be controlled by collective bargaining 
agreements nor subject to review or regulation by the Public Employment Relations Board.  
(Education Code 47611.5) 
 
Approval of Petition 
 

Note:  Education Code 47605 requires the Board to give preference to charter petitions that demonstrate the 
capability to provide comprehensive learning experiences to students identified by the petitioner as academically 
low achieving based on the standards established by the California Department of Education (CDE) pursuant to 
Education Code 54032, as that section read before July 19, 2006. Prior to its repeal on that date, Education Code 
54032 required the CDE to develop standards to identify students as academically low achieving for purposes of 
allocating Economic Impact Aid funds to school sites. However, the Economic Impact Aid program is no longer 
funded or administered by CDE. 

 
The Board shall approve the charter petition if doing so is consistent with sound educational 
practice. In granting charters, the Board shall give preference to petitions that demonstrate the 
capability to provide comprehensive learning experiences for students who are identified by the 
petitioner as academically low-achieving.  (Education Code 47605) 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 47604.1, as added by SB 126 (Ch. 3, Statutes of 2019), charter schools are 
subject to the Brown Act (Government Code 54950-54963), California Public Records Act (Government Code 
6250-6270), conflict of interest laws (Government Code 1090-1099), and the Political Reform Act (Government 
Code 81000-91014). Although Education Code 47604.1 is not effective until January 1, 2020, a 2018 Attorney 



3 
 

General opinion also concluded that, under current law, those statutes govern all local government agencies 
including charter schools. 

 
The Board shall verify that any approved charter contains adequate processes and measures for 
holding the school accountable for complying with applicable law, including Education Code 
47604.1, and for fulfilling the terms of its charter. These shall include, but are not limited to, fiscal 
accountability systems, multiple measures for evaluating the educational program, including 
student outcomes aligned with state priorities as described in Education Code 52060, and regular 
reports to the Board. 
(cf. 0420.41 - Charter School Oversight) 
 

Note:  The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice.  Although not required by law, 
CSBA's publication Charter Schools:  A Guide for Governance Teams recommends one or more memoranda of 
understanding (MOUs) to address matters that are related to the charter petition but are not included in the petition, 
and to establish expectations for which the charter school can be held accountable. CSBA's manual provides 
examples of issues pertaining to business operations, administrative and support services, special education, and 
student assessment that might be addressed in an MOU. 
 
A sample MOU between SBE and a state-approved charter school, available on CDE's web site, may be adapted 
for use by districts. 

 
The Board may approve one or more memoranda of understanding to clarify the financial and 
operational agreements between the district and the charter school.  Any such memorandum of 
understanding shall be annually reviewed by the Board and charter school governing body and 
adjustedamended as necessary. 
 
The district The Board may initially grant a charter for a specified term not to exceed five years.  
(Education Code 47607) 
(cf. 0420.42 - Charter School Renewal) 
(cf. 0420.43 - Charter School Revocation) 
 
It shall not requirebe the responsibility of the petitioners to provide written notice of the Board's 
approval and a copy of the charter to the County Superintendent of Schools, the California 
Department of Education, and the State Board of Education (SBE).  (Education Code 47605) 
 
Denial of Petition 
 
The Board shall deny any student to attendcharter petition that: 
 

Note:  Education Code 47604, as amended by AB 406 (Ch. 291, Statutes of 2018), prohibits a petition submitted 
on or after July 1, 2019 from providing for the operation of a charter school and shall not require any district 
employee to work atas or by a for-profit corporation or organization. Also see BP 0420.42 - Charter School 
Renewal. 

 
1. Proposes to operate a charter school.  (Education Code 47605 as or by a for-profit 

corporation, a for-profit educational management organization, or a for-profit charter 
management organization  (Education Code 47604) 

 



4 
 

2. Authorizes the conversion of a private school to a charter school  (Education Code 47602) 
 

Note:  Education Code 47605 provides that the Board cannot approve a charter school serving students in a grade 
level not offered by the district unless the charter school also serves all the grade levels offered by the district. 
Thus, an elementary district cannot approve a charter for a high school, but may approve a charter for a K-12 
school since it includes all grade levels served by the district. 

 
3. Proposes to serve students in a grade level that is not served by the district, unless the 

petition proposes to serve students in all the grade levels served by the district  (Education 
Code 47605) 

 
Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 47605, a charter petition can be denied only if certain factual findings are made, 
as specified in items #1-6 below. 5 CCR 11967.5.1 contains criteria for SBE's review of charter petitions, which 
may be useful to the district in determining how it might evaluate whether a petition meets the conditions specified 
in items #1-6 below. 

 
Any other charter petition shall be denied only if the Board makes written factual findings specific 
to the petition that one or more of the following conditions exist:  (Education Code 47605) 
 
1. The charter school presents an unsound educational program for the students to be enrolled 

in the charter school. 
 
2. The petitioners are demonstrably unlikely to successfully implement the program set forth 

in the petition. 
 
3. The petition does not contain the number of signatures required. 
 
4. The petition does not contain an affirmation of each of the conditions described in 

Education Code 47605(d). 
 
5. The petition does not contain reasonably comprehensive descriptions of the charter 

provisions in Education Code 47605(b). 
 
6. The petition does not contain a declaration as to whether or not the charter school shall be 

deemed the exclusive public school employer of the school's employees for purposes of 
collective bargaining pursuant to Government Code 3540-3549.3. 

 
The Board shall not deny a petition based on the actual or potential costs of serving students with 
disabilities, nor shall it deny a petition solely because the charter school might enroll students with 
disabilities who reside outside the special education local plan area in which the district 
participates.  (Education Code 47605.7, 47647) 
(cf. 0430 - Comprehensive Local Plan for Special Education) 
 
If the Board denies a petition, the petitioners may choose to submit the petition to the County 
Board of Education and, if then denied by the County Board, to SBE.  (Education Code 47605) 
 
 
 



5 
 

Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
200  Equal rights and opportunities in state educational institutions 
220  Nondiscrimination 
17078.52-17078.66  Charter schools facility funding; state bond proceeds 
17280-17317  Field Act 
17365-17374  Field Act, fitness for occupancy 
32282  Comprehensive safety plan 
33126  School Accountability Report Card 
41365  Charter school revolving loan fund 

42100 Annual statement of receipts and expenditures 
42238.51-42238.532  Funding for charter districts 
44237  Criminal record summary 
44830.1  Certificated employees, conviction of a violent or serious felony 
45122.1  Classified employees, conviction of a violent or serious felony 
46201  Instructional minutes 
47600-47616.7  Charter Schools Act of 1992, as amended 
47640-47647  Special education funding for charter schools 
47650-47652  Funding of first-year charter schools 

48000  Minimum age of admission (kindergarten) 
48010  Minimum age of admission (first grade) 
48011  Minimum age of admission from kindergarten or other school 

49011  Student fees 
51745-51749.36  Independent study 
52052 Alternative Accountability:  numerically significant student subgroups 
52060-52077  Local control and accountability systemplan 

54032  Limited English or low-achieving pupils 
56026  Special education 
56145-56146  Special education services in charter schools 

60600-60649  Assessment of academic achievement, including: 
60605 Academic content and performance standards; assessments 
60640-60649 Standardized Testing and Reporting Program 
60850-60859 High school exit examination 

CORPORATIONS CODE 
5110-6910  Nonprofit public benefit corporations 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
1090-1099  Prohibitions applicable to specified officers 
3540-3549.3  Educational Employment Relations Act 
6250-6270  California Public Records Act 
54950-54963  The Ralph M. Brown Act 

PENAL CODE 
667.5 Definition of violent felony 
1192.7 Definition of serious felony 

81000-91014  Political Reform Act of 1974 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
11700.1-11705  Independent study 
11960-1196911968.5.5  Charter schools 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 24 
101 et seq. California Building Standards Code 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
6311 Adequate yearly progress 



6 
 

6319  Qualifications of teachers and paraprofessionals 
7223-7225  Charter schools 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
200.1-200.78  Accountability 
300.18  Highly qualified special education teachers 

COURT DECISIONS 
Ridgecrest Charter School v. Sierra Sands Unified School District, (2005) 130 Cal.App.4th 986 
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 
Opinion No. 11-201 (2018) 
89 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 166 (2006) 
80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 52 (1997) 
78 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 297 (1995) 

Management Resources: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Uncharted Waters:  Recommendations for Prioritizing Student Achievement and Effective Governance in 
California's Charter Schools:, September 2018 
Charter Schools in Focus, Issue 1:  Managing the Petition Review Process, Governance Brief, November 
2016 
Charter Schools and Board Member Responsibilities, Education Insights Legal Update Webcast, March 
2016 
Charter Schools:  A ManualGuide for Governance Teams, rev. 2005February 2016 

CSBA ADVISORIES 
Charter School Facilities and Proposition 39:  Legal Implications for School Districts, September 
2005 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Special Education and Charter Schools: Questions and Answers, September 10, 2002 

Sample Copy of a Memorandum of Understanding 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION GUIDANCEPUBLICATIONS 
Dear Colleague Letter:  Guidance Regarding the Oversight of Charter Schools Program and Regulatory 
Requirements, including the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards, August 2016 

Charter Schools Program, July 2004:  
The Impact of the New Title I Requirements on Charter Schools, July 2004V, Part B of the 
ESEA, Nonregulatory Guidance, January 2014 
Guidance on the Voluntary Use of Race to Achieve Diversity and Avoid Racial Isolation in Elementary and 
Secondary Schools, December 2011 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 

California Building Standards Commission:  http://www.bsc.ca.gov 
California Charter Schools Association:  http://www.charterassociationccsa.org 
California Department of Education, Charter Schools:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/cs 

Education Commission of the States: http://www.ecs.org 
National Association of Charter School Authorizers:  http://www.charterauthorizersqualitycharters.org 

National School Boards Association:  http://www.nsba.org 
U.S. Department of Education:  http://www.ed.gov 

 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: April 10, 2007 
revised: June 11, 2019 



1 
**Revisions or DELETE??? 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Administrative Regulation 
Philosophy, Goals, Objectives, and Comprehensive Plans  
AR 0420.4 
 
CHARTER SCHOOL AUTHORIZATION 
 

Note:  The following administrative regulation is optional. 
 
Petition Signatures 
 
To be considered by the Board of Education, aA petition for the establishment of a start-up charter 
school within the district must be signed by oneeither of the following:  (Education Code 47605) 
 
1.   A number of parents/guardians equivalent to at least one-half of the number of students 

that the charter school estimates will enroll in the charter school for its first year of 
operation 

 
2.   A number of teachers equivalent to at least one-half of the total number of teachers that the 

charter school estimates will be employed at the school during its first year of operation 
 
If the charter petition calls for an existing public school to be converted to a charter school, the 
petition must be signed by at least 50 percent of the permanent status teachers currently employed 
at the school.  (Education Code 47605) 
(cf. 4116 - Permanent/Probationary/Permanent Status) 
 
In circulating aAny petition, the petitioners circulated to collect signatures shall include a 
prominent statement explaining that a parent/guardian's signature means that the parent/guardian 
is meaningfully interested in having his/hera child attend the charter school or, in the case of a 
teacher's signature, that the teacher is meaningfully interested in teaching at the charter school. 
The proposed charter shall be attached to the petition.  (Education Code 47605) 
 
Advisory Committee 
 

Note:  The following optional section may be revised to reflect district practice. CSBA's publication Charter 
Schools:  A Guide for Governance Teams suggests that a petition review team is one method that a district may 
use to obtain input on proposed charters. Such a committee might include representatives of the district's human 
resources, fiscal services, risk management, student services, curriculum, special education, facilities, and other 
departments. 

 
The Superintendent or designee may establish a staff advisory committee to evaluate the 
completeness of a charter petition based on the requirements in Education Code 47605 and to 
identify any concerns that should be addressed by the petitioners. 
(cf. 2230 - Representative and Deliberative Groups) 
 
 



2 
 

Components of Charter Petition  
 

Note:  CSBA's publication Charter Schools:  A Guide for Governance Teams recommends specific content that 
would constitute a reasonably comprehensive description of each component listed in items #1-16 below, as well 
as additional content that is not required but may be requested of the petitioners (e.g., school calendar, 
transportation arrangements, a sample of the curriculum and instructional materials). 

 
The charter petition shall include affirmations of the conditions described in Education Code 
47605(d) as well as that the charter school will be nonsectarian in its programs, admission policies, 
employment practices, and operations; will not charge tuition; and will not discriminate against a 
student on the basis of characteristics listed in Education Code 220.  The petition shall also contain 
reasonably comprehensive descriptions of all of the following:  (Education Code 47605, 47611.5) 
 
1.  The educational program of the proposed school, designed, among other things, to identify 

those whom the school is attempting to educate, what it means to be an "educated person" 
in the 21st century, and how learning best occurs. The goals identified in that program shall 
include the objective of enabling students to become self-motivated, competent, and 
lifelong learners. 

 
Note:  Education Code 47605 requires the charter petition to include annual goals for all students and for each 
numerically significant subgroup of students, and specific actions to achieve those goals as described in Education 
Code 52060.  Pursuant to Education Code 52052, numerically significant subgroups include ethnic subgroups, 
socioeconomically disadvantaged students, English learners, students with disabilities, foster youth, and homeless 
students, when there are at least 30 students in the subgroup (or at least 15 foster youth or homeless students) in 
the school. 
 
Education Code 47605 requires that these annual goals be aligned with eight state priorities related to (1) the 
degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed, students have sufficient access to 
standards-based instructional materials, and facilities are maintained in good repair; (2) implementation of and 
student access to state academic content and performance standards; (3) parent/guardian involvement and family 
engagement; (4) student achievement; (5) student engagement; (6) school climate; (7) student access to and 
enrollment in a broad course of study, including programs and services provided to benefit low-income students, 
English learners, and/or foster youth (i.e., "unduplicated students" for purposes of the local control funding 
formula); and (8) student outcomes in the specified course of study. See BP/AR 0460 - Local Control and 
Accountability Plan. 

 
The petition shall include a description of the charter school's annual goals for all students 
and for each numerically significant subgroup of students identified pursuant to Education 
Code 52052, including ethnic subgroups, socioeconomically disadvantaged students, 
English learners, students with disabilities, foster youth, and homeless students. These 
goals shall be aligned with the state priorities listed in Education Code 52060 that apply to 
the grade levels served or the nature of the program operated by the charter school. The 
petition also shall describe specific annual actions to achieve those goals. The petition may 
identify additional priorities established for the proposed school, goals aligned with those 
priorities, and specific annual actions to achieve those goals. 
(cf. 0420.41 - Charter School Oversight) 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 

 
If the proposed charter school will serve high school students, the petition shall describe 
the manner in which the charter school will inform parents/guardians about the 



3 
 

transferability of courses to other public high schools and the eligibility of courses to meet 
college entrance requirements. Courses offered by the charter school that are accredited by 
the Western Association of Schools and Colleges may be considered transferable, and 
courses approved by the University of California or the California State University as 
creditable under the "A-Ga-g" admissions criteria may be considered to meet college 
entrance requirements. 

 
Note:  Education Code 47605 requires that the petition identify student outcomes that the charter school intends 
to use, including those that address increases in student achievement both schoolwide and for all groups of students 
served by the charter school. Education Code 47607 defines "all groups of students served by the charter school" 
to mean all numerically significant subgroups of students, as defined in Education Code 52052, served by the 
charter school. 

 
2.   The measurable student outcomes identified for use by the charter school. Student 

outcomes means the extent to which all students of the school demonstrate that they have 
attained the skills, knowledge, and attitudes specified as goals in the school's educational 
program, including outcomes that address increases in student academic achievement both 
schoolwide and for each numerically significant subgroup of students served by the charter 
school. The student outcomes shall align with the state priorities identified in Education 
Code 52060 that apply for the grade levels served or the nature of the program operated by 
the charter school. 

 
3.   The method by which student progress in meeting thosethe identified student outcomes is 

to be measured. To the extent practicable, the method for measuring student outcomes for 
state priorities shall be consistent with the way information is reported on a school 
accountability report card. 
(cf. 0510 - School Accountability Report Card) 

 
4.   The governance structure of the charter school, including, but not limited to, the process to 

be followed by the school to ensure parent/guardian involvement. 
 
5.   The qualifications to be met by individuals to be employed by the charter school. 
 

Note:  AB 1747 (Ch. 806, Statutes of 2018) amended Education Code 47605 to add a requirement that the charter 
petition include provisions for the development and annual update of a school safety plan. 

 
6.   The procedures that the charter school will follow to ensure the health and safety of 

students and staff.  These procedures shall include the requirement that each , including the 
following requirements: 

 
a. Each charter school employee shall furnish the school with a criminal record 

summary as described in Education Code 44237. 
 
b. The charter school shall develop a school safety plan which includes the topics 

listed in Education Code 32282(a)(2)(A)-(H) and procedures for conducting 
tactical responses to criminal incidents. 

 



4 
 

c. The charter school's safety plan shall be reviewed and updated by March 1 each 
year. 

 
7.   The means by which the charter school will achieve a racial and ethnic balance among its 

students that is reflective of the general population residing within the district's territorial 
jurisdiction. 

 
Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 47605, when the number of students who wish to attend the charter school 
exceeds the school's capacity, attendance must be determined by a public random drawing, with admission 
preference extending to students who currently attend the charter school and students who reside in the district. 
Education Code 47605 provides that admission preferences may also include, but are not limited to, siblings of 
students admitted or attending the charter school and children of the school's teachers, staff, and founders identified 
in the initial charter. Education Code 47605 requires that the priority order for preference be determined in the 
charter petition as provided below. 

 
8. The charter school's student admission policy. The petition shall, in accordance with 

Education Code 47605(d), specify procedures for determining enrollment when the 
number of applicants exceeds the school's capacity, including requirements for the use of 
a public random drawing, admission preferences, and priority order of preferences as 
required by law and subject to Governing Board approval. 

 
9.   The manner in which annual, independent financial audits shall be conducted, which shall 

employ generally accepted accounting principles, and the manner in which audit 
exceptions and deficiencies shall be resolved to the Board's satisfaction of the Board. 

 
10. The procedures by which students can be suspended or expelled for disciplinary reasons or 

otherwise involuntarily removed for any reason, including an explanation of how the 
charter school will comply with federal and state constitutional procedural and substantive 
due process requirements as specified in Education Code 47605(b). Such procedures shall 
also include processes by which the charter school will notify the superintendent of a 
district and request to be notified by a district about a student when the circumstances 
specified in Education Code 47605(d) exist. 

 
11.   The manner by which staff members of the charter school will be covered by the State 

Teachers' Retirement System, the Public Employees' Retirement System, or federal social 
security. 

 
12.   The public school attendance alternatives for students residing within the district who 

choose to not to attend the charter schoolsschool. 
 
13.   A description of the rights of any district employee upon leaving district employment to 

work in athe charter school and of any rights of return to the district after employment at 
athe charter school. 

 
14.   The procedures to be followed by the charter school and the Board to resolve disputes 

relating to charter provisions. 
 



5 
 

Note:  Education Code 47605 requires charter petitions to contain the declaration specified in item #15 below 
regarding responsibilities for collective bargaining. If the charter school is not deemed the public school employer 
for purposes of collective bargaining under Government Code 3540-3549.3, the district where the charter school 
is located shall be deemed the public school employer for these purposes, pursuant to Education Code 47611.5.  
Education Code 47611.5 further provides that, if the charter does not specify that the charter school shall comply 
with laws and regulations governing tenure or a merit or civil service system, the scope of representation for that 
charter school shall also include discipline and dismissal of charter school employees. 

 
15. A declaration as to whether or not the charter school will be deemed the exclusive public 

school employer of the school's employees for purposes of collective bargaining under 
Government Code 3540-3549.3.   

 
Note:  Education Code 47605 and 5 CCR 11962 require the charter petition to include procedures to be used in 
the event that the charter school closes for any reason, as provided in item #16.  The below.  Duties of the district 
pertaining to charter school closures include notification requirements pursuant to Education Code 47604.32 and 
5 CCR 11962.1; see BP 0420.41 - Charter School Oversight. 

 
16. Consistent with 5 CCR 11962, the procedures to be used if the charter school closes.  , 

including, but not limited to: 
 
a. Designation of a responsible entity to conduct closure-related activities 
 
b. Notification to parents/guardians, the Board, the county office of education, the 

special education local plan area in which the charter school participates, the 
retirement systems in which the school's employees participate, and the California 
Department of Education, providing at least the following information: 
 
(1) The effective date of the closure 
 
(2) The procedures shall ensure aname(s) and contact information of the 

person(s) to whom reasonable inquiries may be made regarding the closure 
 
(3) The students' districts of residence 

 
(4) The manner in which parents/guardians may obtain copies of student 

records, including specific information on completed courses and credits 
that meet graduation requirements 

 
c. Provision of a list of students at each grade level, the classes they have completed, 

and their districts of residence to the responsible entity designated in accordance 
with item #16a above 

 
d. Transfer and maintenance of all student records, all state assessment results, and 

any special education records to the custody of the responsible entity designated in 
accordance with item #16a above, except for records and/or assessment results that 
the charter may require to be transferred to a different entity 

 
e. Transfer and maintenance of personnel records in accordance with applicable law 



6 
 

 
f. Completion of an independent final audit within six months after the closure of the 

charter school to determine the dispositionthat includes an accounting of all 
financial assets and liabilities of the school, including plans for disposingpursuant 
to 5 CCR 11962 and an assessment of the disposition of any restricted funds 
received by or due to the school 

 
g. Disposal of any net assets remaining after all liabilities of the charter school have 

been paid or otherwise addressed pursuant to 5 CCR 11962 
 
h. Completion and filing of any annual reports required pursuant to Education Code 

47604.33 
 
i. Identification of funding for the maintenanceactivities identified in item #16a-h 

above 
 

Note:  Education Code 47605 requires that petitioners provide to the Governing Board the information listed in 
items #1-4 below. The Board may require additional information. 
 
As outlined in CSBA's publication Charter Schools:  A Guide for Governance Teams, some districts request a 
school calendar, information regarding transportation arrangements, staff development plans, assurances that the 
school will provide appropriate services for English language learners and transfer of student recordsstudents 
with disabilities, or any other information that will assist the Board in understanding the proposal. Districts that 
wish to require additional information in the charter may list those items below. 

 
Charter school petitioners shall provide information to the Board regarding the proposed operation 
and potential effects of the school, including, but not limited to:  (Education Code 47605) 
 

Note:  Education Code 47605 requires that information on school facilities, listed in item #1.   below, must specify 
where the school intends to locate. Unless otherwise exempted, the school must be located within the geographic 
boundaries of the chartering district; see section "Location of Charter School" below. 

 
1. The facilities to be used by the charter school, including where the school intends to locate 

(cf. 7160 - Charter School Facilities) 
 
2.   The manner in which administrative services of the charter school are to be provided 
 
3.   Potential civil liability effects, if any, upon the charter school and district 
 
4.   Financial statements that include a proposed first-year operational budget, including start-

up costs and cash-flow and financial projections for the first three years of operation   
 
Location of Charter School 
 

Note:  Education Code 47605 and 47605.1 establish geographic and site requirements for charter schools. Pursuant 
to Education Code 47605, a charter school granted by either the County Board of Education or the State Board of 
Education following initial denial by the district must locate within the geographic boundaries of the district that 
denied the petition. 



7 
 

The Attorney General has opined, in 89 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 166 (2006), that online charter schools are subject to 
the restrictions and conditions placed upon independent study programs, including the requirement that students 
reside in the charter school's home county or an adjacent county. 

 
Unless otherwise exempted by law, anythe charter petition submitted to the Board on or after July 
1, 2002, shall identify a single charter school that will operate within the geographic boundaries 
of the district.  A charter school may propose to operate at multiple sites within the district as long 
as each location is identified in the petition.  (Education Code 47605, 47605.1) 
 
A charter school that is unable to locate within the district's jurisdictional boundaries may establish 
one site outside district boundaries but within the county, provided that:  (Education Code 47605, 
47605.1) 
 
1.   The district is notified prior to approval of the petition. 
 
2.   The County Superintendent of Schools and Superintendent of Public Instruction (SPI) are 

notified before the charter school begins operations. 
 
3.   The charter school has attempted to locate a single site or facility to house the entire 

program but such a facility or site is unavailable in the area in which the school chooses 
to locate, or the site is needed for temporary use during a construction or expansion project. 

 
A charter school may establish and locate a resource center, meeting space, or other satellite 
facility located in an adjacent county if both of the following conditions are met:  (Education Code 
47605.1) 
 
1.   The facility is used exclusively for the educational support of students who are enrolled in 

nonclassroom-based independent study of the charter school. 
 
2.   The charter school provides its primary educational services in, and a majority of the 

students it serves are residents of, the county in which the school is authorized.  
 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation approved: April 10, 2007 
revised: June 11, 2019 



1 
**Keep or DELETE??? 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Administrative Regulation 
Charter School Facilities 
 
AR 7160  
Facilities 
 
 
Definitions 
 
In-district students are those charter school students who are entitled to attend a district school. 
Students eligible to attend district schools based on an interdistrict attendance agreement or 
parent/guardian employment shall be considered students of the district where they reside.  (5 
CCR 11969.2) 
 
(cf. 5111.1 - District Residency) 
(cf. 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance) 
 
An eligible charter school operating in the district is one that is either currently providing public 
education to in-district students or has identified at least 80 in-district students who are 
meaningfully interested in enrolling in the charter school for the following year, regardless of 
whether the district is or is proposed to be the chartering entity and whether or not the charter 
school has a facility inside the district's boundaries.  (Education Code 47614; 5 CCR 11969.2) 
 
Contiguous facilities are those contained on a school site or immediately adjacent to a school 
site. If the charter school's students cannot be accommodated on any single district school site, 
contiguous facilities also include facilities located at more than one site, provided that the district 
minimizes the number of sites assigned and considers student safety.  (5 CCR 11969.2) 
 
Reasonably equivalent conditions shall be determined on the basis of:  (5 CCR 11969.3) 
 
1.  A comparison group of district schools with similar grade levels, selected in accordance with 
5 CCR 11969.3 
 
2.  Capacity, in accordance with 5 CCR 11969.3, including equivalency of the ratio of teaching 
stations to average daily attendance as those provided to students in the school district attending 
comparison group schools, allocation of specialized classroom space and access to nonteaching 
station space 
 
3.  Condition of facilities, including: 
 
a.  School site size 
 
b.  Condition of interior and exterior surfaces 
 



2 

c.  Condition of mechanical, plumbing, electrical and fire alarm systems 
 
d.  Conformity of mechanical, plumbing, electrical and fire alarm systems to applicable codes 
 
e.  Availability and condition of technology infrastructure 
 
f.  Suitability of the facility as a learning environment, including but not limited to lighting, 
noise mitigation, and size for intended use 
 
g.  The manner in which the facility is furnished and equipped 
 
(cf. 7111 - Evaluating Existing Buildings) 
 
Provision of Facilities by District 
 
As of November 8, 2003, or on the first day of July following the passage of a local school bond 
measure, the district shall make available to a charter school operating in the district facilities 
within the district sufficient for the charter school to accommodate all of its in-district students in 
conditions reasonably equivalent to those in other district schools. Facilities provided to charter 
schools shall be contiguous and shall be furnished and equipped as necessary to conduct 
classroom-based instruction. (Education Code 47614; 5 CCR 11969.2, 11969.4) 
 
(cf. 0420.4 - Charter Schools) 
(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan) 
 
If a charter school was established through the conversion of an existing public school, the 
condition of the facility previously used by the district shall be considered to be reasonably 
equivalent for the first year the charter school uses the facility.  (5 CCR 11969.3) 
 
The district shall not be required to use unrestricted general fund revenues to rent, buy or lease 
facilities for charter schools.  The district may charge the charter school a pro rata share of its 
facilities costs that the district pays with unrestricted general fund revenues. (Education Code 
47614; 5 CCR 11969.7) 
 
Procedures for requesting facilities shall include the following steps:   
 
1.  A charter school must be operating in the district as defined in Education Code 47614 before 
it submits a request for facilities.  A new or proposed charter school is eligible to request 
facilities for a particular fiscal year only if it submitted its charter petition before November 15 
of the fiscal year preceding the year for which facilities are requested.  A new charter school is 
entitled to receive facilities only if its petition was approved before March 1 of the fiscal year 
preceding the year for which facilities are requested.  (5 CCR 11969.9) 
 
2.  The charter school shall submit a written facilities request to the Board of Education by 
October 1 of the preceding fiscal year.  A new charter school, as defined in 5 CCR 11969.9, 
shall submit its request by January 1 of the preceding fiscal year.  The request shall include: 



3 

(Education Code 47614; 5 CCR 11969.9) 
 
a.  Reasonable projections of in-district and total average daily attendance and total classroom 
average daily attendance, broken down by grade level and by the schools that the students would 
otherwise attend 
 
b.  A description of the methodology for the projections 
 
c.  If relevant, documentation of the number of in-district students meaningfully interested in 
attending the charter school 
 
d.  The charter school's instructional calendar 
 
e.  Information regarding the general geographic area in which the charter school wishes to 
locate 
 
f.  Information on the charter school's educational program that is relevant to assignment of 
facilities 
 
In submitting a facilities request, the charter school shall use a form specified by the district.  
The charter school shall distribute, or otherwise make available for review, the written request to 
interested parties, including but not limited to parents/guardians and school staff. 
 
3.  The Board shall review the charter school's projections of in-district and total average daily 
attendance and in-district and total classroom average daily attendance, and shall provide the 
charter school a reasonable opportunity to respond to any concerns raised by the district.   (5 
CCR 11969.9) 
 
4.  The district may deny a facilities request when the projected average daily attendance for the 
year is less than 80. (Education Code 47614) 
 
5.  The Board shall prepare a preliminary proposal regarding the space to be allocated to the 
charter school and the pro rata share amount, and shall provide the charter school a reasonable 
opportunity to review and comment on the proposal.  (5 CCR 11969.9) 
 
6.  The Board shall provide a final notification of the space offered to the charter school by 
April 1 preceding the fiscal year for which facilities are requested. The notification shall identify:  
(5 CCR 11969.9) 
 
a.  The teaching station and nonteaching station space offered for the exclusive use of the 
charter school and that to be shared with district-operated programs 
 
b.  Arrangements for sharing any shared space 
 
c.  The assumptions of in-district classroom average daily attendance upon which the allocation 
is based, and a written explanation of the reasons for any differences than those submitted by the 



4 

charter school 
 
d.  The pro rata share amount 
 
e.  The payment schedule for the pro rata amount, which shall take into account the timing of 
revenues from the state and from local property taxes 
 
7.  The charter school shall provide written notification to the Board, by May 1 or within 30 
days after the district notification, whichever is later, whether or not it intends to occupy the 
offered space.  (5 CCR 11969.9) 
 
The district and charter school shall negotiate an agreement regarding the use of and payment for 
the space.  The agreement shall contain the information included in item #6 above.  (5 CCR 
11969.9) 
 
The agreement also shall require the charter school to maintain liability insurance naming the 
district as an additional insured in order to indemnify the district for any damage or loss for 
which the charter school is liable, and that the charter school shall comply with Board policies 
regarding the operations and maintenance of school facilities, furnishings and equipment.  
 
(cf. 3530 - Risk Management/Insurance) 
 
The space allocated to the charter school shall be furnished, equipped and available for 
occupancy at least seven days prior to the first day of instruction of the charter school.  (5 CCR 
11969.9) 
 
Space allocated for use by the charter school shall not be sublet or used for purposes other than 
those that are consistent with Board policies and district practices without permission of the 
Superintendent or designee.  (5 CCR 11969.5) 
 
(cf. 1330 - Use of School Facilities) 
 
Facilities, furnishings and equipment provided to a charter school by the district shall remain the 
property of the district.  The district shall be responsible for projects eligible to be included in 
the district's deferred maintenance plan and the replacement of district-provided furnishings and 
equipment in accordance with district schedules and practices. The ongoing operations and 
maintenance of facilities, furnishings and equipment shall be the responsibility of the charter 
school. (Education Code 47614; 5 CCR 11969.2, 11969.4) 
 
The charter school shall report actual in-district and total average daily attendance and classroom 
average daily attendance to the district every time that the charter school reports average daily 
attendance for apportionment purposes. If the charter school generates less average daily 
attendance than projected, the charter school shall reimburse the district for the over-allocated 
space at rates set by the State Board of Education. (Education Code 47614; 5 CCR 11969.9) 
 
Funding for New Construction 



5 

 
Applications for facilities funding for new construction pursuant to Education Code 17078.52-
17078.62 may be submitted by either:  (Education Code 17078.53) 
 
1.  The district on behalf of a charter school that is physically located within the geographical 
boundaries of the district 
 
2.  A charter school on its own behalf, if the charter school has provided written notification of 
its intent to both the Board and Superintendent at least 30 days prior to submitting the 
preliminary application that had demonstrated construction grant eligibility based on current 
enrollment data 
 
Any project applying for such funding shall:  (Education Code 17078.54) 
 
1.  Meet all the requirements for public school construction, including Field Act, plan approvals, 
toxic substance review, site selection and site approval that apply to noncharter school projects 
 
(cf. 7150 - Site Selection and Development) 
 
2.  Fund only new construction to be physically located within the geographical jurisdiction of 
the district 
 
If a charter school ceases to use any facilities funded through this program, the facility may be 
used for other purposes in accordance with the priorities established in Education Code 
17078.62. 
 
Zoning Ordinances 
 
Upon a two-thirds vote, the Board may render a city or county ordinance inapplicable to a 
charter school facility if the facility is physically located within the district's geographical 
jurisdiction.  (Government Code 53097.3) 
 
(cf. 9323.2 - Actions by the Board) 
 
 
Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
17070.10-17080  Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act of 1998, including: 
17078.52-17078.66 Charter schools facility funding; state bond proceeds 
17280-17317  Field Act 
46600  Interdistrict attendance agreements 
47600-47616.5  Charter Schools Act of 1992, as amended 
48204  Residency requirements for school attendance 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
53094 Authority to render zoning ordinance inapplicable 
53097.3 Charter school ordinances 



6 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2 
1859.160-1859.171  Charter school facilities program, new construction 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
11969.1-11969.9 Charter school facilities 
COURT DECISIONS 
Ridgecrest Charter School v. Sierra Sands Unified School District, (2005) 130 Cal.App.4th 986 
Sequoia Union High School District v. Aurora Charter High School (2003) 112 Cal.App.4th 185 
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 
80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 52 (1997) 
 
Management Resources: 
WEB SITES 
California Department of Education, Charter Schools Office:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/cs 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
Coalition for Adequate School Housing: http://www.cashnet.org 
Office of Public School Construction: http://www.opsc.dgs.ca.gov 
 
 
 
Regulation  SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
approved:  April 10, 2007  Sierraville, California 



1 
**Revisions** 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 
Community Relations  
BP 1312.1 
 
COMPLAINTS CONCERNING DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 
 

Note:  The following Board policy may be subject to collective bargaining and should be revised to reflect district 
practice. See the accompanying administrative regulation for a sample complaint procedure. 

 
The Governing Board recognizes its accountability to the public can holdfor the quality of the 
district's educational program and the performance of district employees accountable for their 
actions.  The Board desires. The district shall provide a process by which a complaint submitted 
by any person regarding an employee can be resolved impartially, expeditiously, and with minimal 
disruption to district operations and the educational program. 
(cf. 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 - Professional Standards) 
 

Note:  In Baca v. Moreno Valley Unified School District, a federal district court found that a district policy barring 
criticism of employees at public board meetings violated the plaintiff's First Amendment rights by restricting the 
content of speech. The court further noted that the district could not legally prevent a person from speaking in open 
session, even if the speech was clearly defamatory. Thus, although the Governing Board may inform the speaker 
of appropriate district complaint procedures, it cannot prohibit public criticism of district employees. See BB 9323 
- Meeting Conduct. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall develop regulations which permit the public to submit 
complaints against district employees in an appropriate way.  These regulations shall protect the 
rights of involved parties.  The Board may serve as an appeals body if the complaint is not 
resolved.When a concern regarding an employee is presented during a Board meeting or to an 
individual Board member or employee outside of a Board meeting, the complainant shall be 
informed of the appropriate complaint procedure. 
(cf. 9323 - Meeting Conduct) 
 
Any complaint regarding the Superintendent shall be initially filed in writing with the Board. The 
Board shall consult with legal counsel or appoint an appropriate agent to conduct the investigation. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall determine whether a complaint against any other employee 
should be considered a complaint against the district and/or an individual employee, and whether 
it should be resolved by the district's process for complaints concerning personnel and/or other 
district procedures. Any complaint of child abuse or neglect alleged against a district employee 
shall be reported to the appropriate local agencies in accordance with law and BP 5141.4 - Child 
Abuse Prevention and Reporting. Any complaint alleging that an employee engaged in unlawful 
discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying) in district programs 
and activities shall be filed in accordance with BP/AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures. 
Any complaint by an employee, job applicant, volunteer, intern, or independent contractor alleging 
unlawful discrimination or harassment by an employee shall be filed in accordance with AR 4030 
- Nondiscrimination in Employment. 



2 
 

(cf. 1312.2 - Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials) 
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
(cf. 3515.2 - Disruptions3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance) 
The Board prohibits retaliation against complainants.  The Superintendent or designee at his/her 
discretion may keep a complainant's identity confidential, except to the extent necessary to 
investigate the complaint.  The district will not investigate anonymous complaints unless it so 
desires.(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) 
(cf. 4144/4244/4344 - Complaints) 
(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting) 
(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 
(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 
 
Any complaint subject to this policy and the accompanying administrative regulation shall be 
investigated by the principal, the employee's immediate supervisor, the Superintendent or 
designee, legal counsel, agent of the Board, and/or other appropriate person who is not the subject 
of the complaint or subordinate to the employee charged in the complaint. The complainant and 
the employee shall have an opportunity to present information relevant to the complaint. 
 

Note:  The following paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. It is recommended that districts 
investigate all complaints, including those submitted anonymously, since failure to do so may subject the district 
to liability depending on the nature of the allegation. For example, the district can be held liable for civil damages 
for the sexual harassment of a student by an employee if the district is found to have been "deliberately indifferent" 
in its response to a complaint; see BP 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment. 

 
A complaint that is filed anonymously may be investigated by the Superintendent or designee 
depending on the specificity and reliability of the information. 
 
If a complainant requests confidentiality, the Superintendent or designee shall inform the 
complainant that the request may limit the district's ability to investigate the employee's conduct 
or take other necessary action. However, the Superintendent or designee shall take all reasonable 
steps to investigate and resolve the complaint without divulging the complainant's identity. 
 
The Board prohibits retaliation against complainants. 
 
Appeals 
 

Note:  The following optional section is for use by districts that allow appeals to the Board and may be revised to 
reflect district practice. 

 
If either the complainant or the employee submits an appeal of the Superintendent's decision to the 
Board, the Board shall determine whether to uphold the Superintendent's decision without hearing 
the complaint, appoint an appeals committee to advise the Board, or hear the appeal itself. 
(cf. 9130 - Board Committees) 
 

Note:  Government Code 54957 authorizes the use of closed session for hearing specific complaints or charges 
against employees, unless the employee requests an open session. For detailed procedures and notice requirements, 
see BB 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas. 

 



3 
 

If the Board decides to hear the complaint, the matter shall be addressed in closed session in 
accordance with Government Code 54957 unless the employee requests that it be heard in open 
session. The Board shall review the original complaint and additional information provided by the 
Superintendent or designee regarding the steps taken to resolve the issue. 
(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas) 
(cf. 9323 - Meeting Conduct) 
 
The Board's decision shall be final. 
(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
33308.1  Guidelines on procedure for filing child abuse complaints 
35146  Closed sessions 
44031  Personnel file contents and inspection 
44811  Disruption of public school activities 
44932-44949  Resignation, dismissal and leaves of absence (rights of employee; procedures to follow) 
48987  Child abuse guidelines 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
54957  Closed session; complaints re employees 
54957.6  Closed session; salaries or fringe benefits 
PENAL CODE 
273  Cruelty or unjustifiable punishment of child 
11164-11174.3  Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act 
WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 
300  Minors subject to jurisdiction of juvenile court 
COURT DECISIONS 
Baca v. Moreno Valley Unified School District, (1996) 936 F. Supp. 719 

 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: April 10, 2007 
revised: June 11, 2019 



1 
**Revisions** 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Administrative Regulation 
Community Relations  
AR 1312.1 
 
COMPLAINTS CONCERNING DISTRICT EMPLOYEES 
 

Note:  The following optional administrative regulation outlines a process for handling complaints concerning 
district personnel and/ may be subject to collective bargaining. This process should not be used for complaints 
concerning a Governing Board member; such complaints should be filed in writing directly with the Board. 
The following regulation should be modified to reflect district practice. 

 
Every effort should be made to resolve complaints regarding district employees at the earliest 
possible stage. Any person who complains about a district employee shall be encouraged to resolve 
the matter informally through direct communication with the employee whenever possible. 
 
If a complainant is unable or unwilling to resolve the complaint directly with the employee, the 
complainant may submit a written complaint to the principal or other district procedures. 
immediate supervisor of the employee. Complaints related to a principal or district administrator 
shall be initially filed in writing with the Superintendent or designee. If the complainant is unable 
to prepare the complaint in writing, administrative staff shall provide assistance in the preparation 
of the complaint. 
 
A written complaint shall include the full name of the employee involved, a brief but specific 
summary of the complaint and the facts surrounding it, and a description of any prior attempt to 
discuss the complaint with the employee and the failure to resolve the matter. 
 
To promote prompt and fair resolution of the complaint, the following procedures shall govern the 
resolution of complaints against district employees: 
 
1.  Every effort should be made to resolveWhen a written complaint at the earliest possible stage. 

Whenever possible, the complainant should communicate directly tois received, the 
employee who is the subject of the complaint shall be notified within five days or in order 
to resolve concerns. accordance with the collective bargaining agreement. 

 
  If a complainant is unable or unwilling to resolve the complaint directly with the employee, he/she 
may submit an oral or written complaint to the employee's  
 
2. The principal or other immediate supervisor orof the principal. employee shall investigate and 
 
3.  All complaints related to district personnel other than administrators be submitted in writing to 

the principal or immediate supervisor.  If the complainant is unable to prepare the 
complaint in writing, administrative staff shall help him/her to do so. Complaints related 
to a principal or central office administrator shall be initially filed in writing with the 
Superintendent or designee. Complaints related to the Superintendent shall be initially filed 
in writing with the Board.  

4.  When a written complaint is received, the employee shall be notified within five days or in accordance 
with collective bargaining agreements. 



2 
 

5.  A written complaint shall include: 
a.  The full name of each employee involved 
b.  A brief but specific summary of the complaint and the facts surrounding it  
c.  A specific description of any prior attempt to discuss the complaint with the employee and the failure to 
resolve the matter 
6.  Staff responsible for investigating complaints shall attempt to resolve the complaint to the 

satisfaction of the parties involved within 30 days. A complaint against a school or district 
administrator shall be investigated by the Superintendent or designee. The investigation 
may include interviews of the employee, complainant, or witnesses as necessary and/or a 
review any documentation relevant to the complaint. 

 
7.  3. Both the complainant and employee shall be notified in writing of the final decision 

regarding the resolution of the complaint. 
 
4. Either the complainant or the employee against whom the complaint was made may appeal 

athe decision. A decision by the principal or immediate supervisor may be appealed to the 
Superintendent or designee, who shall attempt to resolve the complaint to the satisfaction 
of the personparties involved within 30 days. Parties should consider and accept the 
Superintendent or designee's decision as final. However,Either the complainant, or the 
employee, or the Superintendent or designee may ask appeal the Superintendent's decision 
to address the Governing Board regarding the complaint. 

 
8.  Before any Board consideration of a complaint 
5. If the decision is appealed to the Board, the Superintendent or designee shall submit to the 

Board a written report concerning the complaint, including but not limited tothe following 
information: 
 
a.   The full name of each employee involved 
 
b.   A brief but specific summary of the complaint and the facts surrounding it, 

sufficient to inform the Board and the parties as to the precise nature of the 
complaint and to allow the parties to prepare a response 

 
c.   A copy of the signed original complaint 
 
d.   A summary of the action taken by the Superintendent or designee, together with 

his/her specific finding and the reasons that the problem has not been resolved and 
the reasons 

9.  The Board may uphold the Superintendent's decision without hearing the complaint. 
10.  All parties to a complaint may be asked to attend a Board meeting in order to clarify the issue and 
present all available evidence. 
11.  A closed session may be held to hear the complaint in accordance with law. 
(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas) (cf. 9323 - Meeting Conduct) 
12.  The decision of the Board shall be final. 
Any complaint of child abuse or neglect alleged against a district employee shall be reported to the 
appropriate local agencies in accordance with law, Board policy and administrative regulation.  
(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting) 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation approved: April 10, 2007 
revised: June 11, 2019 



1 
**Revisions** -- reviewed and okayed by Business Manager, Nona Griesert 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 
Business and Noninstructional Operations  
BP 3250 
 
TRANSPORTATION FEES 
 

Note:  The following policy and regulation are for use only by districts that provide transportation services to 
students and choose to charge a fee for such services as authorized by law. In addition to charging a fee for home-
to-school transportation as authorized by Education Code 39807.5, the Governing Board may approve a fee for 
transportation of students to a regional occupational center or program pursuant to Education Code 39807.5, 
transportation for adult students pursuant to Education Code 39801.5, transportation of students to and from their 
place of summer employment in connection with a summer employment program for youth pursuant to Education 
Code 39837, and/or transportation for participants in a community recreation program pursuant to Education Code 
10913 and 39835. See the accompanying administrative regulation. 

 
Whenever the cost of providing student transportation exceeds funding provided by the state, the 
Governing Board of Education finds it necessary tomay charge fees for home-to-school student 
transportation and other transportation services as expressly authorized by law. 
(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges) 
(cf. 3540 - Transportation) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall annually submit proposed transportation fee schedules for 
Board approval.  Fees shall be determined on the basis of operating costs in accordance with law. 
 

Note:  Education Code 39807.5 mandates the Board to adopt rules and regulations for identifying parents/guardians 
who are exempt from these fees based on financial need. The following paragraph provides for the use of 
applications that parallel those used for the free and reduced-price meal program, and may be revised to reflect 
district practice. Because Education Code 49557-49558 provide that applications and records related to free and 
reduced-price meal eligibility are confidential and may only be used for specified purposes, districts are advised 
to require a separate application for free transportation and take further measures, as described below, to ensure 
the privacy of program beneficiaries. 

 
The transportation fee shall be waived for students with demonstrated financial need in accordance 
with Education Code 39807.5.  Eligibility for free transportation based on financial need shall be 
determined in accordance with the income eligibility scales used for the free and reduced-price 
lunch program. 
(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 
 
Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 39807.5, eligible students with disabilities must also be exempted from 
transportation fees.  The California Department of Education's Fiscal Management Advisory 17-01, Pupil Fees, 
Deposits, and Other Charges, interprets Education Code 39807.5 to exempt from the fee only those students with 
disabilities whose individualized education program requires that transportation orbe provided. 

 
In addition, no charge shall be made for any transportation of a student with a disability whose 
parents/guardians are determined indigent pursuant to administrative regulations.individualized 
education program includes transportation as a related service necessary to receive a free 
appropriate public education.  (Education Code 39807.5) 
(cf. 3541.2 - Transportation for Students with Disabilities) 
(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 
 



2 
 

The Board shall certify to the County Superintendent of Schools that the district has levied fees in 
accordance with law and that, in the event that excess fees have been charged, the fees have been 
reduced and excess fee revenue eliminated.  (Education Code 39809.5) 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
10900-10914.5  Community recreation program, especially: 
10913  Fees for uses of school buses for community recreation purposes 
35330  Excursions or field trips 
39800-39860  Transportation, especially: 
39801.5  Transportation fees for adults 
39807.5  Payment of transportation cost; amount of payment 
39809.5  Excess fees; adjustments 
39837  Fees for summer employment transportation 
41850  Home-to-school and special education transportation 
49014  Public School Fair Debt Collection Act 
49557-49558  Applications for free and reduced -price meals 
56026  Individuals with exceptional needs 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
350  Fees not permitted 
COURT DECISIONS 
Arcadia Unified School District et al v. State Department of Education, 2 Cal. 4th 251 (1992) 
Hartzell v. Connell, 35 Cal.3d 899 (1984) 

Management Resources: 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Pupil Fees, Deposits and Other Charges, Fiscal Management Advisory 17-01, July 28, 2017 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 

 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: April 10, 2007 
revised: June 11, 2019 



1 
**Revisions** -- reviewed and okayed by Business Manager, Nona Griesert 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Administrative Regulation 
Business and Noninstructional Operations 
AR 3250 
 
TRANSPORTATION FEES 
 

Note:  The following optional administrative regulation should be revised to reflect transportation services 
provided by the district for which fees will be charged. 
 
Pursuant to 5 CCR 350, students must not be required to pay any fee, deposit, or other charge not specifically 
authorized by law. Districts should consult legal counsel before establishing any transportation fee not listed below. 
 
In Hartzell v. Connell, the California Supreme Court ruled that districts may not charge students to participate in 
extracurricular activities, but did not speak directly to transportation. There is no law which directly permits a 
district to charge a fee for transportation to and from extracurricular activities. It could be argued that transportation 
is not an integral part of an extracurricular activity.  However, absent any case law, legislation, or regulation 
authorizing fees for transportation to extracurricular activities or for any other activity not specifically enumerated 
as permitting fees to be charged, districts desiring to charge such fees should consult with legal counsel. 

 
When approved by the Governing Board, the district may charge transportation fees for students 
traveling to and from school.  (Education Code 39807.5) 
(cf. 3540 - Transportation) 
(cf. 3541 - Transportation Routes and Services) 
 
With Board approval, the district may also charge transportation fees for: 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 10901, the community recreation programs described in item #1 below are 
programs that are sponsored by a nonprofit organization for the benefit of disadvantaged school-age children or 
students with disabilities in a county with a population of 45,000 or less according to the most recent federal 
census. 

 
1. Participants in a community recreation program offered pursuant to Education Code  

10900-10914.5  (Education Code 10913, 39835) 
 

Note:  Items #2-4 are for use by districts that maintain high schools. 
 
2. Students traveling between the regular full-time schools they would attend and the regular 

full-time occupational classes provided by a regional occupational center or program  
(ROC/P)  (Education Code 39807.5) 
(cf. 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program) 

 
3. Matriculated or enrolled adults traveling to and from school, or adults pursuing other 

educational purposes  (Education Code 39801.5) 
 
4. Students traveling to and from their places of employment during the summer in connection 

with a summer employment program for youth  (Education Code 39837) 
 

Note:  Although Education Code 39807.5 requires any fee for home-to-school transportation or transportation to 
and from a regional occupational center or program to be no greater than the statewide average nonsubsidized cost 
of providing this transportation to a student on a publicly owned or operated transit system, as determined by the 



2 
**Revisions** -- reviewed and okayed by Business Manager, Nona Griesert 

Superintendent of Public Instruction, this statewide average cost is no longer being calculated. Instead, districts 
must ensure that transportation fees, when combined with funding received from the state, do not exceed actual 
operating costs. Similarly, for the services described in items #1 and 3-4 above, the district is authorized pursuant 
to Education Code 10913, 39801.5, and 39837 to establish a reasonable fee covering all or parts of the costs of the 
services. 

 
The total amount received by the district from the state and parent/guardian fees shall not exceed 
the actual operating cost of home-to-school transportation during the fiscal year. If excess fees are 
collected due to errors in estimated costs, fees shall be reduced in succeeding years.  (Education 
Code 10913, 39801.5, 39809.5, 39837) 
 
The Board of Education shall certify to the County Superintendent of Schools that the district has 
levied fees in accordance with law and that, in the event that excess fees have been charged, the 
fees have been reduced and excess fee revenue eliminated.  (Education Code 39809.5) 
 

Note:  The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. 
 
Bus passes and tickets shall be sold at all district schools and at the district office.  No money shall 
be collected on school buses. 
 
Exemption from Fees 
 

Note:  The following section may be revised to reflect district practice. 
Pursuant to Education Code 39807.5, the Governing Board is mandated to adopt criteria for parents/guardians to 
be exempted from transportation fees based on financial need; see the accompanying Board policy. 

 
Upon enrollment and at the beginning of each school year, parents/guardians shall be based on the 
receive information about income eligibility scalesstandards and application procedures for a 
waiver of the transportation fee. All applications and related records shall be confidential and used 
for the free and reduced-price lunch program and/or proof of receipt of Temporary Assistance to 
Needy Families (TANF).only for the purpose of determining a student's eligibility for a fee waiver. 
(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 
(cf. 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information) 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
 
At the beginning of the school year and whenever a new student is enrolled, parents/guardians 
shall receive information about free transportation eligibility standards, application procedures and 
appeal procedures. 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
 
All applications and records related to eligibility for free transportation shall be confidential and 
used only for purposes directly connected with the free transportation program. 
 
Students receiving free transportation shall not be identified by the use of special bus passes, 
tickets, lines, seats, or any other means.  They shall in no way be treated differently from other 
students, nor shall their names be published, posted, or announced in any manner or used for any 
purpose other than the transportation program. 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation approved: April 10, 2007 
revised: June 11, 2019 



1 
**Revisions** -- reviewed and okayed by Business Manager, Nona Griesert 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 
Business and Noninstructional Operations 
BP 3540 
 
TRANSPORTATION 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 39800, the Governing Board may provide transportation for students to and 
from school whenever such transportation is advisable and good reasons exist to provide these services.  The 
following optional policy is for use by districts that choose to provide transportation services through their own 
transportation system, contracting out, or other methods, and should be revised to reflect district practice. 

 
The Governing Board desires to provide for the safe and efficient transportation of students to and 
from school as necessary to ensure student access to the educational program, promote regular 
attendance, and reduce tardiness.  The In determining the extent to which the district provides 
forwill provide transportation services, the Board shall depend uponweigh student and community 
needs and a continuing assessmentagainst the cost of financial resourcesproviding such services. 
(cf. 3100 - Budget) 
(cf. 3541 - Transportation Routes and Services) 
(cf. 3541.1 - Transportation for School-Related Trips) 
(cf. 3541.2 - Transportation for Students with Disabilities) 
(cf. 5116.1- Intradistrict Open Enrollment) 
(cf. 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance) 
(cf. 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall recommend to the Board the most economical, 
environmentally sustainable, and appropriate means of providing transportation services. 
(cf. 3510 - Green School Operations) 
 
Note:  The following paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. Pursuant to Education Code 39800 and 
39802, the district may use one or more means to provide transportation, as indicated below.  For example, the district 
may use school buses for its regular home-to-school program and contract with private parties to provide transportation 
for field trips. 
 
The Board may purchase, rent, or lease vehicles; contract with a common carrier or municipally 
owned transit system; contract with responsible private parties including the parent/guardian of 
the student being transported; and/or contract with the County Superintendent of Schools.  
(Education Code 35330, 39800, 39801) 
 
In contracting for transportation services, the district shall comply with all applicable laws related 
to bids and contracts.  (Education Code 39802-39803) 
(cf. 3311 - Bids) 
(cf. 3312 - Contracts) 
 

Note:  The following paragraph is optional.  If a district that has been providing transportation decides instead to 
have alternative transportation provided through an outside company or volunteers, this action may constitute 
"contracting out" and be subject to negotiation pursuant to the Educational Employment Relations Act ( 
Government Code 3540-3549.3). 



2 
 

 
In lieu of providing transportation in whole or in part, the district may pay the student's 
parents/guardians either their actual and necessary expenses in transporting the student or the cost 
of the student's food and lodging at a place convenient to the school. In either case, the amount of 
the payment shall not exceed the cost that would be incurred by the district to provide for the 
transportation of the student to and from school.  (Education Code 39806-39807) 
 

Note:  The following optional paragraph is for use by districts that choose to require parents/guardians of 
transported students to pay a portion of the cost of transportation as authorized by Education Code 39807.5.  
Pursuant to Education Code 39807.5, the district must waive the fee for students with financial need and students 
with disabilities whose individualized education program includes transportation as a related service necessary for 
the student to receive a free appropriate public education. See BP/AR 3250 - Transportation Fees. 

 
The Board may charge a transportation fee to parents/guardians of transported students in 
accordance with Education Code 39807.5 and BP/AR 3250 - Transportation Fees. 
(cf. 3250 - Transportation Fees) 
 
No student shall be required to be transported for any reason without the written permission of the 
student's parent/guardian, except in emergency situations involving illness or injury to the student 
pursuant to Education Code 35350 or the evacuation of students as necessary for their safety. 
(cf. 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall develop procedures to promote safety for students traveling 
on school buses. 
(cf. 3543 - Transportation Safety and Emergencies) 
(cf. 5131.1 - Bus Conduct) 
 

Note:  The following optional paragraph is for use by districts that maintain their own transportation system and 
may be revised to reflect district practice. Pursuant to Penal Code 637.7, the district is authorized, as the registered 
owner of the school bus, to use electronic tracking systems to determine the location or movement of the vehicle. 
It is recommended that school bus drivers be notified when a bus is so equipped. 
 
In addition to using a global positioning system (GPS) to locate a bus in an emergency or to track delays, the 
district may choose to authorize parents/guardians to access the location data so that they may determine when 
their child has been picked up or dropped off at a bus stop. 

 
The district may install a global positioning system (GPS) on school buses and/or student activity 
buses in order to enhance student safety and provide real-time location data to district and school 
administrators and parents/guardians. 
 

Note:  The following optional paragraph is for use by districts that maintain their own transportation system. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure the qualifications of bus drivers and related staff 
employed by the district, provide for the maintenance and operation of district-owned school buses 
and other equipment, and ensure adequate facilities for equipment storage and maintenance. 
(cf. 3542 - School Bus Drivers) 
 
 
 



3 
 

Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
35330  Excursions and field trips 
35350  Authority to transport pupils 
39800-39860  Transportation, especially: 
39800  Powers of governing board to provide transportation for pupils to and from school; definition of 
"municipally owned transit system" 
39801  Contract with County Superintendent of Schools to provide transportation 
39802-39803  Bids and contracts for transportation services 
39806  Payments to parents in lieu of transportation 
39807  Food and lodging payments in lieu of transportation 
3880739807.5  Transportation fees 
39808  District transportation of private school students 
41850-41854  Allowances for transportation 
41860-41862  Supplemental allowances for transportation 
45125.1  Criminal background checks for contractors 
52311  Regional occupational centers, transportation 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
3540-3549.3  Educational Employment Relations Act 
PENAL CODE 
637.7  Electronic tracking devices 
VEHICLE CODE 
2807  School bus inspection 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
14100-14103  Use of school buses and school pupil activity buses 
15240-15343  Allowances for student transportation, especially: 
15253-15272  District records related to transportation 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 13 
2025  Retrofitting of diesel school buses 
COURT DECISIONS 
Arcadia Unified School District et. al. v. State Department of Education, 2 Cal. 4th 251 (1992) 

 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: April 10, 2007 
revised: June 11, 2019 



1 
**DELETE** - incorporated into BP reviewed and okayed by Business Manager, Nona Griesert 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Administrative Regulation 
Business and Noninstructional Operations 
AR 3540  
 
TRANSPORTATION 
 
No student shall be required to be transported for any reason without the written permission of 
the student's parent/guardian, except in emergency situations involving illness or injury to the 
student.  (Education Code 35350) 
 
Means of Transportation 
 
To provide transportation services, the Board of Education may purchase, rent or lease vehicles; 
contract with a common carrier or municipally owned transit system; contract with responsible 
private parties including the parent/guardian of the student being transported; and/or contract 
with the County Superintendent of Schools.  (Education Code 35330, 39800, 39801) 
 
In contracting for transportation services, the district shall comply with all applicable laws 
related to bids and contracts.  (Education Code 39802- 39803) 
(cf. 3311 - Bids) 
(cf. 3312 - Contracts) 
 
 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation approved: April 10, 2007 



1 
**Revisions** - reviewed and okayed by Administrators 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 
Instruction 
BP 6142.1 
 
SEXUAL HEALTH AND HIV/AIDS PREVENTION INSTRUCTION 
 

Note:  The following policy is for use by districts that offer any of grades 7-12. Education Code 51934 requires 
districts to provide comprehensive sexual health education and HIV prevention education to students in grades 
7-12.  See the accompanying administrative regulation for definitions and program requirements. 
 
Education Code 51934 also authorizes, but does not require, districts to provide age-appropriate 
comprehensive sexual health education prior to grade 7 on any of the topics specified in Education Code 
51934. Districts that choose to provide such instruction prior to grade 7 may revise the following policy and 
administrative regulation accordingly. 
 
Sexual health education taught at any grade level must comply with the requirements of Education Code 
51933. 

 
The Governing Board desires to provide a well-planned, integrated sequence of medically 
accurate and inclusive instruction on comprehensive sexual health and human 
immunodeficiency virus (HIV) prevention. The district's educational program shall 
provideaddress the goals of the California Healthy Youth Act pursuant to Education Code 
51930-51939, including providing students with the knowledge and skills necessary to protect 
them from risks presented by sexually transmitted infections and, unintended pregnancy, 
sexual harassment, sexual assault, sexual abuse, and human trafficking and to have healthy, 
positive, and safe relationships and behaviors.  The district's educational program shall also 
promote students' understanding of sexuality as a normal part of human development and 
thetheir development of healthy attitudes and behaviors concerning adolescent growth and 
development, body image, gender, gender identity, gender expression, sexual orientation, 
relationships, marriage, and family. 
(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness) 
(cf. 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases) 
(cf. 5141.25 - Availability of Condoms) 
(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students) 
(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education) 
 
The district shall respect the rights of parents/guardians to supervise their children's education 
on these subjects and to impart values regarding human sexuality to their children. 
 

Note:  The following paragraph may be revised to reflect the grade levels offered by the district. 
 
Comprehensive sexual health education and HIV prevention education shall be offered to all 
students in grades 7-12, including at least once in junior high or middle school and at least 
once in high school.  (Education Code 51934) 
(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study) 
The district's curriculum shall support the purposes of the California Healthy Youth Act as 
specified in Education Code 51930-51939, be unbiased and inclusive of all students in the 
classroom, and be aligned with the state's content standards. The district shall respect the rights 



2 
 

of parents/guardians to supervise their children's education on these subjects and to impart 
values regarding human sexuality to their children. 
 

Note:  The following paragraph is for use by districts that require completion of a health education course for 
graduation from high school, and may be adapted for use by other districts. Pursuant to Education Code 
51225.36, any district that has a health education course requirement for graduation from high school must 
include instruction in sexual harassment and violence, including, but not limited to, information on the 
affirmative consent standard pursuant to Education Code 67386. Also see AR 6146.1 - High School 
Graduation Requirements. 

 
The The Superintendent or designee may appoint a coordinator and/or an advisory committee 
regarding the district's comprehensive sexual health and HIVeducation program shall include 
information on the affirmative consent standard. Affirmative consent is defined as affirmative, 
conscious, and voluntary agreement to engage in sexual activity.  Teachers delivering such 
instruction shall consult information related to sexual harassment and violence in the state 
health curriculum framework.  (Education Code 51225.36, 67386) 
 

Note:  Education Code 49381, as added by SB 1104 (Ch. 848, Statutes of 2018), requires districts that offer 
any of grades 6-12 to identify the most appropriate methods of informing parents/guardians of human 
trafficking prevention resources, and to provide such information through the identified methods by January 
1, 2020. The following paragraph is for use by districts that maintain grades 6-12 and may be modified for 
districts that serve students in grades K-5. 

 
The Superintendent or designee participate in planning, implementing, and evaluatingshall 
identify appropriate methods for informing the school community about subjects related to the 
district's programcomprehensive sexual health and HIV prevention education.  The 
Superintendent or designee shall use such identified methods to inform parents/guardians of 
students in grades 6-12 about human trafficking prevention resources, as required pursuant to 
Education Code 49381. 
 
Parent/Guardian Consent 
 

Note:  Education Code 51938 requires districts to notify parents/guardians about instruction in sexual health 
and HIV prevention and of their right to request that their child not receive the instruction. See the 
accompanying administrative regulation for details of the required notice. 
 
Pursuant to Education Code 51938, districts must use a "passive consent" or "opt-out" process regarding 
sexual health and HIV prevention education and any assessments related to that instruction. Thus, each student 
must receive the instruction unless the parent/guardian notifies the district in writing that the student should 
not receive the instruction. 
 
In addition, Education Code 51938 requires districts to use a passive consent or opt-out process to obtain 
parent/guardian consent when administering an anonymous, voluntary, and confidential research and 
evaluation tool to measure students' health behaviors and risks, including a test, questionnaire, or survey 
containing age-appropriate questions about sexual attitudes or practices. However, for any such research and 
evaluation tool administered prior to grade 7, Education Code 51513 requires that parents/guardians give 
permission before the instrument is administered to their child (i.e., "active consent"). 
 
20 USC 1232h mandates districts to adopt a policy regarding the district's arrangements to protect student 
privacy when such a survey is administered to any student, regardless of their grade level.  See BP/AR 5022 
- Student and Family Privacy Rights for language implementing this requirement. 

 



3 
 

At the beginning of each school year or at the time of a student's enrollment, parents/guardians 
shall be notified, in the manner specified in the accompanying administrative regulation, that 
they may request in writing that their child be excused from participating in comprehensive 
sexual health and HIV prevention education. Students so excused by their parents/guardians 
shall be given an alternative educational activity.  (Education Code 51240, 51938, 51939) 
(cf. 5022 - Student and Family Privacy Rights) 
 
A student shall not be subject to disciplinary action, academic penalty, or other sanction if the 
student's parent/guardian declines to permit the student to receive the instruction.  (Education 
Code 51939) 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
220  Prohibition of discrimination 
33544  Inclusion of sexual harassment and violence in health curriculum framework 
48980  Notice at beginning of term 
49381  Human trafficking prevention resources 
51202  Instruction in personal and public health and safety 
51210.8  Health education curriculum 
51225.36  Instruction in sexual harassment and violence; districts that require health education for 
graduation 
51240  Excuse from instruction due to religious beliefs 
51513  Test, questionnaire, survey, or examination containing questions about beliefs or practices 
51930-51939  California Healthy Youth Act 
51950  Abuse, sexual abuse, and human trafficking prevention education 
67386  Student safety; affirmative consent standard 
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 
1255.7  Parents surrendering physical custody of a baby 
PENAL CODE 
243.4  Sexual battery 
261.5  Unlawful sexual intercourse 
271.5  Parents voluntarily surrendering custody of a baby 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1232h  Protection of student rights 
7906  Sex education requirements and prohibited use of funds 

Management Resources: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Promoting Healthy Relationships for Adolescents:  Board Policy Considerations, Governance Brief, 
August 2014 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Health Education Content Standards for California Public Schools, Kindergarten Through Grade 12, 
2008 
Health Framework for California Public Schools:  Kindergarten through Grade 12, 2003 
HUMAN RIGHTS CAMPAIGN FOUNDATION PUBLICATIONS 
California LGBTQ Youth Report, January 2019 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
California Department of Education, Sex Education and HIV/AIDS/STD Instruction:  
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/he/se 
California Department of Public Health:  http://www.cdph.ca.gov 
California Healthy Kids Resource Center:  http://www.californiahealthykids.org 
California Partnership to End Domestic Violence:  http://www.cpedv.org 
California Safe Schools Coalition:  http://www.casafeschools.org 
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention:  http://www.cdc.gov 
Human Rights Campaign:  https://www.hrc.org/hrc-story/hrc-foundation 
U.S. Food and Drug Administration:  http://www.fda.gov 



4 
 

 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: April 10, 2007 
revised: August 9, 2011 
revised: January 12, 2016 
revised: June 11, 2019 



1 
**Revisions** - reviewed and okayed by Administrators 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Administrative Regulation 
Instruction 
AR 6142.1 
 
SEXUAL HEALTH AND HIV/AIDS PREVENTION INSTRUCTION 
 

Note:  The following administrative regulation is for use by districts that maintain any of grades 7-12. 
Education Code 51934 requires districts to provide comprehensive sexual health education and HIV 
prevention education to students in grades 7-12. 
 
If the district chooses to provide age-appropriate sexual health education prior to grade 7 as authorized by 
Education Code 51934, it may revise the following administrative regulation accordingly. 

 
Definitions 
 
Comprehensive sexual health education means education regarding human development and 
sexuality, including education on pregnancy, contraception, and sexually transmitted 
infections.  (Education Code 51931) 
 
HIV prevention education means instruction on the nature of human immunodeficiency virus 
(HIV) and acquired immune deficiency syndrome (AIDS), methods of transmission, strategies 
to reduce the risk of HIV infection, and social and public health issues related to HIV and 
AIDS.  (Education Code 51931) 
(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education) 
(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study) 
 
Age appropriate refers to topics, messages, and teaching methods suitable to particular ages or 
age groups of children and adolescents, based on developing cognitive, emotional, and 
behavioral capacity typical for the age or age group.  (Education Code 51931) 
 
Medically accurate means verified or supported by research conducted in compliance with 
scientific methods and published in peer-reviewed journals, where appropriate, and recognized 
as accurate and objective by professional organizations and agencies with expertise in the 
relevant field, such as the federal Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, the American 
Public Health Association, the American Academy of Pediatrics, and the American College of 
Obstetricians and Gynecologists.  (Education Code 51931) 
 
General Criteria for Instruction and Materials 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district's comprehensive sexual health and 
HIV prevention instruction and materials:  (Education Code 51933) 
 
1. Are age appropriate 
 
2. Are factually and medically accurate and objective 
 
3. AlignAre aligned with and support the following purposes as specified in Education 

Code 51930: 



2 
 

 
a. To provide students with the knowledge and skills necessary to protect their 

sexual and reproductive health from HIV and other sexually transmitted 
infections and from unintended pregnancy 

 
b. To provide students with the knowledge and skills they need to develop healthy 

attitudes concerning adolescent growth and development, body image, gender, 
sexual orientation, relationships, marriage, and family 

 
c. To promote understanding of sexuality as a normal part of human development 
 
d. To ensure students receive integrated, comprehensive, accurate, and unbiased 

sexual health and HIV prevention instruction and provide educators with clear 
tools and guidance to accomplish that end 

 
e. To provide students with the knowledge and skills necessary to have healthy, 

positive, and safe relationships and behaviors 
 
4. Are appropriate for use with English learners, students with disabilities, and students 

of all races, genders, sexual orientations, and ethnic and cultural backgrounds; students 
with disabilities; and English learners 
(cf. 6174 - Education for English Learners) 

 
5. Are available on an equal basis to a student who is an English learner, consistent with 

the existing curriculum and alternative options for an English learner as otherwise 
provided in the Education Code 

 
6. Are accessible to students with disabilities, including, but not limited to, the provision 

of a modified curriculum, materials, and instruction in alternative formats and auxiliary 
aids 
(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 

 
7. Do not reflect or promote bias against any person in protected categories of 

discrimination pursuant to Education Code 220 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 

 
8. Affirmatively recognize that people have different sexual orientations and, when 

discussing or providing examples of relationships and couples, shall be inclusive of 
same-sex relationships 

 
9. Teach students about gender, gender expression, and gender identity, and explore the 

harm of negative gender stereotypes 
 
10. Encourage students to communicate with their parents/guardians and other trusted 

adults about human sexuality and provide the knowledge and skills necessary to do so 
 
11. Teach the value of and prepare students to have and maintain committed relationships 

such as marriage 
 



3 
 

12. Provide students with knowledge and skills they need to form healthy relationships that 
are based on mutual respect and affection and are free from violence, coercion, 
harassment, and intimidation 
(cf. 5145. 3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 

 
13. Provide students with knowledge and skills for making and implementing healthy 

decisions about sexuality, including negotiationcommunication and refusal skills to 
assist students in overcoming peer pressure and using effective decision-making skills 
to avoid high-risk activities 

 
14. Do not teach or promote religious doctrine 
 
Components of Sexual Health and HIV Prevention Education 
 
The district's comprehensive sexual health education and HIV prevention education for 
students in grades 7-12, in addition to complying with the criteria listed above in the section 
"General Criteria for Instruction and Materials," shall include all of the following:  (Education 
Code 51934) 
 
1. Information on the nature of HIV and other sexually transmitted infections and their 

effects on the human body 
 
2. Information on the manner in which HIV and other sexually transmitted infections are 

and are not transmitted, including information on the relative risk of infection according 
to specific behaviors, including sexual behaviors and injection drug use 

 
3. Information that abstinence from sexual activity and injection drug use is the only 

certain way to prevent HIV and other sexually transmitted infections, and that 
abstinence from sexual intercourse is the only certain way to prevent unintended 
pregnancy 
 

 The instruction shall provide information about the value of delaying sexual activity 
while also providing medically accurate information on other methods of preventing 
HIV and other sexually transmitted infections and pregnancy. 
(cf. 5141.25 - Availability of Condoms) 
(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students) 

 
4. Information about the effectiveness and safety of all federal Food and Drug 

Administration (FDA) approved methods that prevent or reduce the risk of contracting 
HIV and other sexually transmitted infections, including use of antiretroviral 
medication, consistent with the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 

 
5. Information about the effectiveness and safety of reducing the risk of HIV transmission 

as a result of injection drug use by decreasing needle use and needle sharing 
 
6. Information about the treatment of HIV and other sexually transmitted infections, 

including how antiretroviral therapy can dramatically prolong the lives of many people 
living with HIV and reduce the likelihood of transmitting HIV to others 

 



4 
 

7. Discussion about social views on HIV and AIDS, including addressing unfounded 
stereotypes and myths regarding HIV and AIDS and people living with HIV 

 
 This instruction shall emphasize that successfully treated HIV-positive individuals 

have a normal life expectancy, all people are at some risk of contracting HIV, and that 
testing is the only way to know if one is HIV-positive. 

 
8. Information about local resources, how to access local resources, and students' legal 

rights to access local resources for sexual and reproductive health care such as testing 
and medical care for HIV and other sexually transmitted infections and pregnancy 
prevention and care, as well as local resources for assistance with sexual assault and 
intimate partner violence 

 
9.Information about the effectiveness and safety of FDA-approved contraceptive methods in 
preventing pregnancy, including, but not limited to, emergency contraception. 
 
  Instruction on pregnancy shall include an objective discussion of all legally available 

pregnancy outcomes, including, but not limited to: 
 
a. Parenting, adoption, and abortion 

 
b. Information on the law on surrendering physical custody of a minor child 72 

hours of age or younger, pursuant to Health and Safety Code 1255.7 and Penal 
Code 271.5 

 
c. The importance of prenatal care 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 51934, comprehensive sexual health education must include information 
about sexual harassment, sexual assault, sexual abuse, and human trafficking. AB 1861 (Ch. 807, Statutes of 
2018) amended Education Code 51934 to require that the information on human trafficking include the 
components specified in items #10a and b below. 

 
10. Information about sexual harassment, sexual assault, sexual abuse, and human 

trafficking, including: 
 
a. Information on the prevalence and nature of human trafficking, strategies to 

reduce the risk of human trafficking, techniques to set healthy boundaries, and 
how to safely seek assistance if there is a suspicion of trafficking 

 
b. Information on how social media and mobile device applications are used for 

human trafficking 
 

Note:  Education Code 51934 requires that the comprehensive sexual health instruction include information 
about adolescent relationship abuse, as provided below. For further information about adolescent dating abuse, 
see CSBA's governance brief Promoting Healthy Relationships for Adolescents:  Board Policy 
Considerations. 

 
11. Information about adolescent relationship abuse and intimate partner violence, and sex 

traffickingincluding the early warning signs of each 
 



5 
 

Note:  Education Code 51934, as amended by AB 1868 (Ch. 428, Statutes of 2018), authorizes districts to 
provide the instruction described below. The following paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. 

 
The district's comprehensive sexual health education and HIV prevention education shall 
include instruction regarding the potential risks and consequences of creating and sharing 
suggestive or sexually explicit materials through cell phones, social networking web sites, 
computer networks, or other digital media.  (Education Code 51934) 
 
Professional Development 
 
The district's comprehensive sexual health education and HIV prevention education shall be 
provided by instructors trained in the appropriate courses who are knowledgeable of the most 
recent medically accurate research on human sexuality, healthy relationships, pregnancy, and 
HIV and other sexually transmitted infections.  (Education Code 51931, 51933, 51934) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall cooperatively plan and conduct in-service training for all 
district personnel who provide HIV prevention education, through regional planning, joint 
powers agreements, or contract services.  (Education Code 51935) 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
 
In developing and providing in-service training, the Superintendent or designee shall cooperate 
and collaborate with the teachers who provide HIV prevention education and with the 
California Department of Education (CDE).  (Education Code 51935) 
 
The district shall periodically conduct in-service training to enable district personnel to learn 
new developments in the scientific understanding of HIV. In-service training shall be voluntary 
for personnel who have demonstrated expertise or received in-service training from the CDE 
or Centers for Disease Control and Prevention.  (Education Code 51935) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may expand HIV in-service training to cover the topic of 
comprehensive sexual health education in order for district personnel teaching comprehensive 
sexual health education to learn new developments in the scientific understanding of sexual 
health.  (Education Code 51935) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall periodically provide continuing education that enables 
district personnel to learn about new developments in the understanding of abuse, including 
sexual abuse, and human trafficking and current prevention efforts and methods. Such 
education may include early identification of abuse, including sexual abuse, and human 
trafficking of students and minors.  (Education Code 51950) 
 
Use of Consultants or Guest Speakers 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 51933, 51934, and 51936, the district's comprehensive sexual health and 
HIV prevention education may be taught by outside consultants or delivered by guest speakers at an assembly. 
Any such instruction must comply with the same requirements as instruction provided by the district and in 
accordance with Education Code 51930-51939. If the district elects to use outside consultants or guest 
speakers, parents/guardians must be provided additional notice about the speaker and the speaker's 
organization; see item #4 in the section below entitled "Parent/Guardian Notification." 

 



6 
 

The Superintendent or designee may contract with outside consultants or guest speakers, 
including those who have developed multilingual curricula or curricula accessible to persons 
with disabilities, to deliver comprehensive sexual health and HIV prevention education or to 
provide training for district personnel.  All outside consultants and guest speakers shall have 
expertise in comprehensive sexual health education and HIV prevention education and 
knowledge of the most recent medically accurate research on the relevant topic(s) covered in 
the instruction. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that any instruction provided by 
an outside speaker or consultant complies with Board policy, administrative regulation, and 
Education Code 51930-51939.  (Education Code 51933, 51934, 51936) 
(cf. 6145.8 - Assemblies and Special Events) 
 
Parent/Guardian Notification 
 

Note:  Education Code 51938 requires the district to provide parents/guardians the following notification.  A 
sample notification letter is available on the California Department of Education's web site. 
 
In addition, Education Code 49381, as added by SB 1104 (Ch. 848, Statutes of 2018), requires districts that 
offer any of grades 6-12 to identify the most appropriate methods of informing parents/guardians of human 
trafficking prevention resources, and to provide such information through the identified methods by January 
1, 2020; see the accompanying Board policy. Districts that combine such information with the annual 
notification required pursuant to Education Code 51938 may revise the following section accordingly. 

 
At the beginning of each school year or at the time of a student's enrollment, the Superintendent 
or designee shall notify parents/guardians about instruction in comprehensive sexual health 
education and HIV prevention education, as well as research on student health behaviors and 
risks, planned for the coming year.  The notice shall advise parents/guardians:  (Education 
Code 48980, 51938) 
 
1. That written and audiovisual educational materials to be used in comprehensive sexual 

health and HIV prevention education are available for inspection 
 
2. That parents/guardians have a right to excuse their child from comprehensive sexual 

health or HIV prevention education, or research on student health behaviors and risks, 
provided they submit their request in writing to the district 

 
3. That parents/guardians have a right to request a copy of Education Code 51930-51939 
 
4. Whether the comprehensive sexual health or HIV prevention education will be taught 

by district personnel or outside consultants and, if the district chooses to use outside 
consultants or guest speakers for this purpose, the following information: 
 
a. The date of the instruction 
 
b. The name of the organization or affiliation of each guest speaker 
 
c. Information stating the right of the parent/guardian to request a copy of 

Education Code 51933, 51934, and 51938 
 

If the arrangements for instruction by outside consultants or guest speakers are made 
after the beginning of the school year, the  Superintendent or designee shall notify 



7 
 

parents/guardians by mail or another commonly used method of notification no fewer 
than 14 days before the instruction is given. 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 

 
Nonapplicability to Certain Instruction or Materials 
 
The requirements of Education Code 51930-51939 pertaining to instructional content, teacher 
training, and parental notification and consent shall not apply to the following:  (Education 
Code 51932) 
 
1. A description or illustration of human reproductive organs that may appear in a 

textbook, adopted pursuant to law, if the textbook does not include other elements of 
comprehensive sexual health education or HIV prevention education as defined in 
Education Code 51931 
(cf. 6142.93 - Science Instruction) 

 
2. Instruction or, materials, presentations, or programming that discussdiscusses gender, 

gender identity, gender expression, sexual orientation, discrimination, harassment, 
bullying, intimidation, relationships, or family and dodoes not discuss human 
reproductive organs and their functions 

 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation approved: April 10, 2007 
revised: August 9, 2011 
revised: January 12, 2016 
revised: June 11, 2019 



1 
**New** - reviewed and okayed by Administrators 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 
Instruction  
BP 6142.6 
 
VISUAL AND PERFORMING ARTS EDUCATION 
 

Note:  The following optional policy may be revised to reflect district practice.  State law requires that visual and 
performing arts be included in the course of study offered in grades 1-6 (Education Code 51210) and grades 7-12 
(Education Code 51220); see AR 6143 - Courses of Study.  In addition, Education Code 51225.3 requires 
completion of one course in visual or performing arts, foreign language (including American Sign Language), or 
career technical education for high school graduation; see BP 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements. 
 
On January 9, 2019, the State Board of Education (SBE) adopted revised content standards and proficiency levels 
for visual and performing arts, including standards for media arts in addition to dance, music, theatre, and visual 
arts. The following policy reflects the updated state content standards. 

 
The Governing Board believes that visual and performing arts are essential to a well-rounded 
educational program and should be an integral part of the course of study offered to students at all 
grade levels. The district's arts education program shall be designed to foster students' artistic 
competencies, cultivate students' appreciation and understanding of the arts in ways that are 
enjoyable, fulfilling, and transferable to students' personal, academic, and professional endeavors, 
and support students to fully engage in lifelong arts learning. 
(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study) 
(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 
 
The Board shall adopt academic standards for dance, media arts, music, theatre, and visual arts 
that lead to artistic literacy and promote access and equity in the arts. District standards shall 
describe the skills, knowledge, and abilities that students are expected to possess at each grade 
level and shall meet or exceed state standards. 
(cf. 0415 - Equity) 
(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall develop a sequential curriculum for dance, media arts, music, 
theatre, and visual arts which is consistent with the state curriculum framework and includes the 
following artistic processes: 
 
1. Creating:  conceiving and developing new artistic ideas and work 
 
2. Performing/producing/presenting:  realizing artistic ideas and work through interpretation 

and presentation 
 
3. Responding:  understanding and evaluating how the arts convey meaning 
 
4. Connecting:  relating artistic ideas and work with personal meaning and external content 

(cf. 6141 - Curriculum Development and Evaluation) 
 



2 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 60200, the SBE adopts basic instructional materials for use in grades K-8, 
including materials for visual and performing arts; see BP/AR 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional 
Materials.  Education Code 60210 authorizes the Governing Board to select materials that have not been approved 
by the SBE provided that the materials are aligned with state academic content standards and the majority of 
participants in the review process are teachers assigned to the subject area or grade level for which the materials 
will be used. 
 
For grades 9-12, Education Code 60400 and 60411 authorize the Board to select district instructional materials 
that meet criteria specified in law. 

 
The Board shall adopt standards-based instructional materials for visual and performing arts which 
may incorporate a variety of media and technologies. 
(cf. 0440 - District Technology Plan) 
(cf. 1312.2 - Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials) 
(cf. 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials) 
(cf. 6161.11 - Supplementary Instructional Materials) 
(cf. 6162.6 - Use of Copyrighted Materials) 
(cf. 6163.1 - Library Media Centers) 
 

Note:  Education Code 99200-99204 establish The California Arts Project (TCAP), a statewide professional 
development project in the visual and performing arts. Professional development resources also may be located 
through the California Dance Education Association, the California Association for Music Education, the 
California Educational Theatre Association, and the California Art Education Association. 

 
As appropriate, the Superintendent or designee shall provide a standards-based professional 
development program designed to increase teachers' knowledge of and ability to teach the arts and 
to implement the district's arts education program. 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall encourage the integration of community arts resources into 
the educational program.  Such resources may include opportunities for students to attend musical 
and theatrical performances, observe the works of accomplished artists, and work directly with 
artists-in-residence and volunteers.  In addition, the Superintendent or designee may collaborate 
with community organizations to share resources and seek grant opportunities. 
(cf. 1230 - School-Connected Organizations) 
(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance) 
(cf. 1260 - Educational Foundation) 
(cf. 1700 - Relations Between Private Industry and the Schools) 
(cf. 3290 - Gifts, Grants and Bequests) 
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 
(cf. 6153 - School-Sponsored Trips) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall regularly evaluate the implementation of the district's arts 
education program at each grade level and report to the Board regarding its effectiveness in 
enabling students to meet academic standards. 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 
(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
8950-8957  California summer school for the arts 
32060-32066  Toxic art supplies 
35330-35332  Field trips 
51210  Course of study, grades 1-6 
51220  Course of study, grades 7-12 
51225.3  Graduation requirements 
58800-58805  Specialized secondary programs 
60200-60213  Instructional materials, elementary schools 
60400-60411  Instructional materials, high schools 
99200-99204  Subject matter projects 

Management Resources: 
CALIFORNIA ALLIANCE FOR ARTS EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Parents' Guide to the Visual and Performing Arts in California Public Schools 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
California Arts Framework for Public Schools, Kindergarten through Grade Twelve 
California Arts Standards for Public Schools, Prekindergarten through Grade Twelve, January 2019 
WEB SITES: 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
Arts Education Partnership:  http://aep-arts.org 
California Alliance for Arts Education:  http://www.artsed411.org 
California Arts Council:  http://www.cac.ca.gov 
California Art Education Association:  http://www.caea-arteducation.org 
California Association for Music Education:  http://www.actaonline.org/content/california-
association-music-education 
California Dance Education Association:  http://www.cdeadance.org 
California Department of Education, Visual and Performing Arts:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/vp 
California Educational Theatre Association:  http://www.cetoweb.org 
California Music Educators Association:  http://www.calmusiced.com 
The California Arts Project:  http://csmp.ucop.edu/tcap 

 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: June 11, 2019 
 



1 
**Revisions** - reviewed and okayed by Administrators 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 
Instruction  
BP 6146.1 
 
HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS 
 
The Governing Board desires to prepare all students to obtain a high school diploma so that they 
can take advantage of opportunities for postsecondary education and employment. 
(cf. 5127 - Graduation Ceremonies and Activities) 
(cf. 5147 - Dropout Prevention) 
(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 
(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study) 
(cf. 6146.3 - Reciprocity of Academic Credit) 
 
Course Requirements 
 
To obtain a high school diploma, students shall complete the following courses in grades 9-12, 
with each course being one year unless otherwise specified: 
 
1. Four courses in English  (Education Code 51225.3) 

(cf. 6142.91 - Reading/Language Arts Instruction) 
 
2.         Three courses in mathematics  (Education Code 51225.3) 
 

At least one mathematics course, or a combination of the two mathematics courses, shall 
meet or exceed state academic content standards for Algebra I or Mathematics I. 
Completion of such coursework prior to grade 9 shall satisfy the Algebra I or Mathematics 
I requirement, but shall not exempt a student from the requirement to complete two 
mathematics courses in grades 9-12.  (Education Code 51224.5) 

 
Students may be awarded up to one mathematics course credit for successful completion 
of an approved computer science course that is classified as a "category c" course based on 
the "a-g" course requirements for college admission.  (Education Code 51225.3, 51225.35) 
(cf. 6142.92 - Mathematics Instruction) 
(cf. 6152.1 - Placement in Mathematics Courses) 

 
3. Two courses in science, including biological and physical sciences  (Education Code 

51225.3) 
(cf. 6142.93 - Science Instruction) 

 
4. Three courses in social studies, including United States history and geography; world 

history, culture, and geography; a one-semester course in American government and civics; 
and a one-semester course in economics  (Education Code 51225.3) 
(cf. 6142.3 - Civic Education) 
(cf. 6142.94 - History-Social Science Instruction) 

 
 
 



2 

Note:  Education Code 51225.3 authorizes the Board to include a course in career technical education (CTE) as an 
alternative to the visual or performing arts or foreign language course requirement for high school graduation.  If 
the Board chooses to do so, it must, at a regular Board meeting prior to allowing a CTE course as an alternative, 
notify parents/guardians, students, teachers, and the public of information specified in Education Code 51225.3. 
In addition, the information must be included in the district's annual notification to parents/guardians pursuant to 
Education Code 48980; see the accompanying administrative regulation.  Districts that do not allow this alternative 
course requirement should delete references to CTE in item #5 below. 
 
The CTE course may be offered through different means, including a district-operated program, regional 
occupational center or program, or county office of education program pursuant to a joint powers agreement.  See 
BP/AR 6178 - Career Technical Education and BP 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program for program 
details pertaining to CTE. 

 
5. One course in visual or performing arts; foreign language, including American Sign 

Language; or career technical education (CTE)  (Education Code 51225.3) 
 
 To be counted towards meeting graduation requirements, a CTE course shall be aligned to 

the CTE model curriculum standards and framework adopted by the State Board of 
Education. 
(cf. 6142.2 - World/Foreign Language Instruction) 
(cf. 6142.6 - Visual and Performing Arts Education) 
(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 
(cf. 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program) 

 
6. Two courses in physical education, unless the student has been otherwise exempted 

pursuant to other sections of the Education Code  (Education Code 51225.3) 
(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity) 

 
Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 51225.3, the Board may prescribe additional coursework (e.g., health education, 
service learning) or other requirements (e.g., portfolios or senior projects) that district students must complete in 
order to obtain a diploma. If the Board does so, such courses or projects should be listed below. 
 
If the district requires a course in health education for graduation, Education Code 51225.36 requires that the 
district include instruction in sexual harassment and violence, including, but not limited to, information on the 
affirmative consent standard pursuant to Education Code 67386. See BP 6142.1 - Sexual Health and HIV/AIDS 
Prevention Instruction. In addition, pursuant to Education Code 51225.6, a district that requires a course in health 
education for graduation is required to include instruction in compression-only cardiopulmonary resuscitation. See 
AR 6143 - Courses of Study. 

 
7.  Senior Project 

(cf. 6142.1 - Sexual Health and HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction) 
(cf. 6142.4 - Service Learning/Community Service Classes) 
(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education) 

 
87. Completion, in grade 12 or academic equivalent, one senior project, the requirements of 

which are determined and outlined by the high school faculty and administration, to include 
a research paper, project activity and formal presentation. 

 
With the inception of a 7 period schedule, the unit requirements for Loyalton High School are: 
 
Class of 2019 - One year 7 periods, 3 years 8 periods -  300 Credits 
Class of 2020 - Two years 7 periods, 2 years 8 periods -  290 Credits 
Class of 2021 - Three Years 7 periods, 1 year 8 periods -  275 Credits 



3 

Class of 2022 - All 4 years 7 periods -  260 Credits 
 
All district schools on an 8 period day shall remain at 300 Credits. 
 
Because the prescribed course of study may not accommodate the needs of some students, the 
Board shall provide alternative means for the completion of prescribed courses in accordance with 
law. 
(cf. 6146.11 - Alternative Credits Toward Graduation) 
(cf. 6146.2 - Certificate of Proficiency/High School Equivalency) 
(cf. 6146.4 - Differential Graduation and Competency Standards for Students with Disabilities) 
 
Exemptions and Waiversfrom District-Adopted Graduation Requirements 
 

Note:  Education Code 51225.1 requires the district to exempt from any district-adopted graduation requirements 
a foster youth, homeless student, former juvenile court school student, child of a military family, or migrant student 
who transfers into the district or between district high schools any time after completing the second year of high 
school, or an immigrant student who is in the third or fourth year of high school and is participating in a newcomer 
program (i.e., a program designed to meet the academic and transitional needs of newly arrived immigrant students 
that has as a primary objective the development of English language proficiency). This exemption does not apply 
if the Superintendent or designee makes a finding that the student is reasonably able to complete the requirements 
in time to graduate by the end of the fourth year of high school. Also see AR 6173 - Education for Homeless 
Children, AR 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth, AR 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families, AR 
6173.3 - Education for Juvenile Court School Students, and AR 6175 - Migrant Education Program. 
 
Pursuant to Education Code 51225.1, within 30 calendar days of the transfer of a foster youth, homeless student, 
former juvenile court school student, child of a military family, or migrant student, or within 30 days of a student 
beginning participation in a newcomer program, the district is required to provide notice to the student of the 
availability of the exemption and whether the student qualifies for it. If the district fails to provide that notification, 
the student will be eligible for the exemption once notified, even if the notification is received after the termination 
of the court's jurisdiction over the foster youth or former juvenile court school student, after the homeless student 
ceases to be homeless, or after the student no longer meets the definition of a child of a military family, a migrant 
student, or a student participating in a newcomer program, as applicable. 
 
Education Code 51225.1 also provides that, if an exempted student completes the statewide coursework 
requirements before the end of the fourth year of high school, the district or a district school must not require or 
request that the student graduate before the end of the fourth year of high school. 
 
Any complaint alleging the district's failure to comply with the requirements of Education Code 51225.1 may be 
filed using the district's uniform complaint procedures pursuant to 5 CCR 4600-4670. See BP/AR 1312.3 - Uniform 
Complaint Procedures. 

 
District students are required to complete graduation course requirements specified above, 
including the requirements imposed by Education Code 51225.3 and those adopted by the Board. 
However, a foster youth, homeless student, former juvenile court school student, child of a military 
family, or migrant student who transfers into the district or between district schools any time after 
completing the second year of high school, or a newly arrived immigrant student who is in the 
third or fourth year of high school and is participating in a newcomer program, shall be exempted 
from any graduation requirements adopted by the Board that are in addition to statewide course 
requirements. This exemption shall not apply if the Superintendent or designee makes a finding 
that the student is reasonably able to complete the requirements in time to graduate by the end of 
the fourth year of high school. Within 30 days of the transfer, or of the commencement of 
participation in a newcomer program, as applicable, the Superintendent or designee shall notify 
any sucheligible student shall be notified of the availability of the exemption and whether the 
student qualifies for it.  (Education Code 51225.1) 



4 

(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 
(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 
(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families) 
(cf. 6173.3 - Education for Juvenile Court School Students) 
(cf. 6175 - Migrant Education Program) 
 
Retroactive Diplomas 
 
Any student who completed grade 12 in the 2003-04 through 2014-15 school year and met all 
applicable graduation requirements other than the passage of the high school exit examination shall 
be granted a high school diploma.  (Education Code 51413) 
 
In addition, the district may retroactively grant high school diplomas to:  (Education Code 48204.4, 
51430, 51440) 
 
1. Persons who departed California against their will while in grade 12 and did not receive a 

diploma because the departure interrupted their education, provided that they were in good 
academic standing at the time of the departure 
 
Persons may be considered to have departed California against their will if they were in 
custody of a government agency and were transferred to another state, were subject to a 
lawful order from a court or government agency that authorized their removal from 
California, were subject to a lawful order and were permitted to depart California before 
being removed from California pursuant to the lawful order, were removed or were 
permitted to depart voluntarily pursuant to the federal Immigration and Nationality Act, or 
departed due to other circumstances determined by the district that are consistent with the 
purposes of Education Code 48204.4. 

 
 In determining whether to award a diploma under these circumstances, the Superintendent 

or designee shall consider any coursework that may have been completed outside of the 
United States or through online or virtual courses. 

 
2. Former students who were interned by order of the federal government during World War 

II or who are honorably discharged veterans of World War II, the Korean War, or the 
Vietnam War, provided that they were enrolled in a district school immediately preceding 
the internment or military service and did not receive a diploma because their education 
was interrupted due to the internment or military service in those wars 

 
 Deceased former students who satisfy these conditions may be granted a retroactive 

diploma to be received by their next of kin. 
 
3. Veterans who entered the military service of the United States while in grade 12 and who 

had satisfactorily completed the first half of the work required for grade 12 in a district 
school 

 
 
 
 



5 

Honorary Diplomas 
 
The Board may grant an honorary high school diploma to:  (Education Code 51225.5) 
 
1. An international exchange student who has not completed the course of study ordinarily 

required for graduation and who is returning to the home country following the completion 
of one academic school year in the district 
(cf. 6145.6 - International Exchange) 

 
2. A student who is terminally ill 
 
The honorary diploma shall be clearly distinguishable from the regular diploma of graduation 
awarded by the district.  (Education Code 51225.5) 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
47612  Enrollment in charter school 
48200  Compulsory attendance 
48204.4  Parents/guardians departing California against their will 
48412  Certificate of proficiency 
48430  Continuation education schools and classes 
48645.5  Acceptance of coursework 
48980  Required notification at beginning of term 
49701  Interstate Compact on Educational Opportunity for Military Children 
51224  Skills and knowledge required for adult life 
51224.5  Algebra instruction 
51225.1  Exemption from district graduation requirements 
51225.2  Student in foster care defined; acceptance of coursework, credits, retaking of course 
51225.3  High school graduation 
51225.35  Mathematics course requirements; computer science 
51225.36  Instruction in sexual harassment and violence; districts that require health education for 
graduation 
51225.5  Honorary diplomas 
51225.6  Compression-only cardiopulmonary resuscitation 
51228  Graduation requirements 
51240-51246  Exemptions from requirements 
51250-51251  Assistance to military dependents 
51410-51413  Diplomas 
51420-51427  High school equivalency certificates 
51430  Retroactive high school diplomas 
51440  Retroactive high school diplomas 
51450-51455  Golden State Seal Merit Diploma 
51745  Independent study restrictions 
56390-56392  Recognition for educational achievement, special education 
66204  Certification of high school courses as meeting university admissions criteria 
67386  Student safety; affirmative consent standard 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
1600-1651  Graduation of students from grade 12 and credit toward graduation 
4600-4670  Uniform complaint procedures 
COURT DECISIONS 
O'Connell v. Superior Court (Valenzuela), (2006) 141 Cal.App.4th 1452 

Management Resources: 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
California Department of Education, High School:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/gs/hs 



6 

University of California, List of Approved a-g Courses:  
http://www.universityofcalifornia.edu/admissions/freshman/requirements 

 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: April 10, 2007 
revised: September 14, 2010 
revised: April 12, 2011 
revised: May 8, 2012 
revised: April 8, 2014 
revised: February 9, 2016 
revised: February 14, 2017 
revised: February 13, 2018 
revised: September 11, 2018 
revised: March 12, 2019 
revised: June 11, 2019 



1 
**Annual Review** - no changes per Administrators 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 
Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities 
 
BP 6145  
Instruction 
 
The Board of Education recognizes that extracurricular and cocurricular activities enrich the educational 
and social development of students and enhance students' feelings of connectedness with the schools. The 
district shall encourage and support student participation in extracurricular and cocurricular activities 
without compromising the integrity and purpose of the educational program. 
(cf. 1330 - Use of School Facilities); (cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate); (cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition); (cf. 
5148.2 - Before/After School Programs) 
 
Prerequisites for student participation in extracurricular and cocurricular activities shall be limited to those 
that have been demonstrated to be essential to the success of the activity. No extracurricular or cocurricular 
program or activity shall be provided or conducted separately on the basis of any actual or perceived 
characteristic listed as a prohibited category of discrimination in state or federal law, nor shall any student's 
participation in an extracurricular or cocurricular activity be required or refused on those bases. (5 CCR 
4925) 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities); (cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment); (cf. 
5145.7 - Sexual Harassment); (cf. 6145.5 - Student Organizations and Equal Access) 
 
Any complaint alleging unlawful discrimination in the district's extracurricular or cocurricular programs or 
activities shall be filed in accordance with BP/AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures. 
 
Unless specifically authorized by law, no student shall be charged a fee for his/her participation in 
educational activities, including extracurricular and cocurricular activities and materials or equipment 
related to such activities. (Education Code 49010, 49011)  
(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges); (cf. 3452 - Student Activity Funds) 
 
Eligibility Requirements:  
To be eligible to participate in extracurricular and cocurricular activities, students in grades 7 through 8 
must demonstrate weekly satisfactory academic progress including but not limited to: 
 
1. Maintenance of a grade report that reflects no "F" or failing grade. 

a. Students may practice with an "F" grade but are not allowed to participate in games, 
tournaments, or travel with the team. 

 
To be eligible to participate in extracurricular and cocurricular activities, students in grades 9 through 12 
must demonstrate satisfactory educational progress in the previous grading period, including, but not 
limited to: (Education Code 35160.5) 
 
1. Maintenance of a minimum of 2.0 grade point average on a 4.0 scale with no "F" grade(s)in all 

enrolled classes 
 
2. Maintenance of minimum progress toward meeting high school graduation requirements 

(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement); (cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may grant ineligible students a probationary period not to exceed one 
semester. Students granted probationary eligibility must meet the required standards by the end of the 
probationary period in order to remain eligible for participation. (Education Code 35160.5) 
 



2 
Any decision regarding the eligibility of a homeless student, foster youth, or child of an active duty military 
family for extracurricular or cocurricular activities shall be made by the Superintendent or designee in 
accordance with Education Code 48850 and 49701. 
(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children); (cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth); (cf. 6173.2 - Education of 
Children of Military Families) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may revoke a student's eligibility for participation in extracurricular and 
cocurricular activities when the student's poor citizenship is serious enough to warrant loss of this privilege. 
 
Student Conduct at Extracurricular/Cocurricular Events:  
When attending or participating in extracurricular and cocurricular activities on or off campus, district 
students are subject to district policies and regulations relating to student conduct. Students who violate 
district policies and regulations may be subject to discipline including, but not limited to, suspension, 
expulsion, transfer to alternative programs, or denial of participation in extracurricular or cocurricular 
activities in accordance with Board policy and administrative regulation. When appropriate, the 
Superintendent or designee shall notify local law enforcement. 
(cf. 5131 - Conduct); (cf. 5131.1 - Bus Conduct); (cf. 5144 - Discipline); (cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due 
Process); (cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 
 
Annual Policy Review:  
The Board shall annually review this policy and implementing regulations. (Education Code 35160.5) 
 
Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
35145  Public meetings 
35160.5  District policy rules and regulations; requirements; matters subject to regulation 
35179  Interscholastic athletics; associations or consortia 
35181  Students' responsibilities 
48850  Participation of homeless students and foster youth in extracurricular activities and interscholastic sports 
48930-48938  Student organizations 
49010-49013  Student fees 
49024  Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate 
49700-49704  Education of children of military families 
CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION 
Article 9, Section 5 Common school system 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
350  Fees not permitted 
4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs receiving state financial assistance 
5531  Supervision of extracurricular activities of pupils 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
2000h-2-2000h-6  Title IX, 1972 Education Act Amendments 
COURT DECISIONS 
Hartzell v. Connell, (1984) 35 Cal. 3d 899 
Management Resources: 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Pupil Fees, Deposits, and Other Charges, Fiscal Management Advisory 12-02, April 24, 2013 
CALIFORNIA TASK FORCE REPORT TO THE LEGISLATURE 
Compact on Educational Opportunity for Military Children:  Preliminary Final Report, March 2009 
COMMISSION ON TEACHER CREDENTIALING PUBLICATIONS 
Information on Assembly Bill 346 Concerning the Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate (ASCC), Coded Correspondence 10-11, July 20, 2010 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
California Association of Directors of Activities:  http://www.cada1.org 
California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 
California Interscholastic Federation:  http://www.cifstate.org 
Commission on Teacher Credentialing:  http://www.ctc.ca.gov 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: April 10, 2007 
revised: October 9, 2007 
revised: August 14, 2012 
revised: October 9, 2012 
revised: February 9, 2016 
revised: July 11, 2017 



1 
**Annual Review** - no changes per Administrators 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Administrative Regulation 
Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities 
 
AR 6145  
Instruction 
 
 
Definitions 
 
For purposes of applying eligibility criteria for student participation, extracurricular and 
cocurricular activities shall be defined as follows:  (Education Code 35160.5) 
 
1. Extracurricular activities are not part of the regular school curriculum, are not graded, do 

not offer credit, do not take place during classroom time, and have all of the following 
characteristics: 

 
a. The program is supervised or financed by the school district. 

 
b. Students participating in the program represent the school district. 

 
c. Students exercise some degree of freedom in the selection, planning, or control of 

the program. 
 

d. The program includes both preparation for performance and performance before 
an audience or spectators. 

 
2. Cocurricular activities are programs that may be associated with the curriculum in 

a regular classroom. 
 
An activity is not an extracurricular or cocurricular activity if either of the following conditions 
applies:  (Education Code 35160.5) 
 
1. It is a teacher-graded or required program or activity for a course which satisfies the 

entrance requirements for admission to the California State University or the University 
of California. 
(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study) 

 
2. It is a program that has as its primary goal the improvement of academic or educational 

achievement of students. 
 
 
 
 
 



2 
 

Eligibility Requirements 
 
Grades 7-8 
 
The grade point average (GPA) used to determine eligibility shall be based on the grades entered 
into the district's attendance/grading program on a designated day of every school week, i.e., 
Tuesday. 
 
Grades 9-12 
 
The grade point average (GPA) used to determine eligibility for extracurricular and cocurricular 
activities shall be based on grades of the last previous grading period during which the student 
attended class at least a majority of the time.  If a student was not in attendance for all, or a 
majority of, the grading period due to absences excused by the school for reasons such as serious 
illness or injury, approved travel, or work, the GPA used to determine eligibility shall be the 
grading period immediately prior to the excluded grading period(s). (Education Code 35160.5) 
(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses) 
 
When a student becomes ineligible to participate in extracurricular or cocurricular activities in 
the upcoming grading period, or when he/she is subject to probation, the principal or designee 
shall provide written notice to the student and his/her parent/guardian. 
 
Supervision 
 
All extracurricular activities conducted under the name or auspices of a district school or any 
class or organization of the school, regardless of where the activities are held, shall be under the 
direct supervision of certificated employees.  (5 CCR 5531) 
 
Any noncertificated person working with students in a district-sponsored extracurricular student 
activity program shall possess an Activity Supervisor Clearance Certificate from the 
Commission on Teacher Credentialing or shall have cleared a Department of Justice and Federal 
Bureau of Investigation criminal background check prior to beginning his/her duties, in 
accordance with BP 4127/4227/4327 - Temporary Athletic Team Coaches.  (Education Code 
49024) 
(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance) 
(cf. 4127/4227/4327 - Temporary Athletic Team Coaches) 
(cf. 4212.5 - Criminal Record Check) 
 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation approved: April 10, 2007 
revised: October 9, 2007 
revised: August 14, 2012 
revised: October 9, 2012 



1 
**Annual Review** - no changes per Administrators 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 
Board Policy 
Intradistrict Open Enrollment 

 
BP 5116.1 
Students 

 
The Governing Board desires to provide enrollment options that meet the diverse needs and 
interests of district students and parents/guardians, while also maximizing the efficient use of 
district facilities. The Superintendent or designee shall establish procedures for the selection and 
transfer of students among district schools in accordance with law, Board policy, and 
administrative regulation. 

 
(cf. 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance) 

 
The parents/guardians of any student who resides within district boundaries may apply to enroll 
their child in any district school, regardless of the location of their residence within the district. 
(Education Code 35160.5) 

 
(cf. 5111.1 - District Residency) 

 
The Board shall annually review this policy. (Education Code 35160.5, 48980) 

Enrollment Priorities 

No student currently residing within a school's attendance area shall be displaced by another 
student transferring from outside the attendance area. (Education Code 35160.5) 

 
(cf. 5116 - School Attendance Boundaries) 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall grant priority to any district student to attend another 
district school, including a charter school, outside of his/her attendance area as follows: 

 
1. Any student enrolled in a district school that has been identified on the state's Open 
Enrollment Act list (Education Code 48354) 

 
(cf. 5118 - Open Enrollment Act Transfers) 

 
2. Any student enrolled in a district school designated by the California Department of 
Education as "persistently dangerous" (20 USC 7912; 5 CCR 11992) 

 
(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 

 
3. Any student who is a victim of a violent crime while on school grounds (20 USC 7912) 



2 
**Annual Review** 

4. Upon a finding that special circumstances exist that might be harmful or dangerous to the 
student in the current attendance area. Special circumstances include, but are not limited to, 
threats of bodily harm or threats to the emotional stability of the student. Any such student may 
transfer to a district school that is at capacity and otherwise closed to transfers. To grant priority 
under these circumstances, the Superintendent or designee must have received either: 
(Education Code 35160.5) 

 
a. A written statement from a representative of an appropriate state or local agency, 
including, but not necessarily limited to, a law enforcement official, social worker, or a properly 
licensed or registered professional such as a psychiatrist, psychologist, or marriage and family 
therapist 

 
b. A court order, including a temporary restraining order and injunction 

 
5. Any sibling of a student already in attendance in that school 

 
6. Any student whose parent/guardian is assigned to that school as his/her primary place of 
employment 

 
Application and Selection Process 

 
In order to ensure that priorities for enrollment in district schools are implemented in accordance 
with law, applications for intradistrict open enrollment shall be submitted between May 1 and 
June 30 of the school year preceding the school year for which the transfer is requested. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall calculate each school's capacity in a nonarbitrary manner 
using student enrollment and available space. (Education Code 35160.5) 

 
Except for priorities listed above, the Superintendent or designee shall use a random, unbiased 
selection process to determine who shall be admitted whenever the school receives admission 
requests that are in excess of the school's capacity. (Education Code 35160.5) 

 
Enrollment decisions shall not be based on a student's academic or athletic performance, except 
that existing entrance criteria for specialized schools or programs may be used provided that the 
criteria are uniformly applied to all applicants. Academic performance may be used to determine 
eligibility for, or placement in, programs for gifted and talented students. (Education Code 
35160.5) 

 
(cf. 6172 - Gifted and Talented Student Program) 

Transportation 

Except as required for students who transferred out of a Title I program improvement school, the 
district shall not be obligated to provide transportation for students who attend school outside 
their attendance area. 



3 
**Annual Review** 

(cf. 3250 - Transportation Fees) 
(cf. 3540 - Transportation) 

 
Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
200   Prohibition against discrimination 
35160.5 District policies; rules and regulations 
35291 Rules 
35351 Assignment of students to particular schools 
46600-46611 Interdistrict attendance agreements 
48200 Compulsory attendance 
48204 Residency requirements for school attendance 
48300-48316 Student attendance alternatives, school district of choice program 
48350-48361 Open Enrollment Act 
48980 Notice at beginning of term 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
11992-11994 Definition of persistently dangerous schools 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
6311 State plans 
7912 Transfers from persistently dangerous schools 
COURT DECISIONS 
Crawford v. Huntington Beach Union High School District, (2002) 98 Cal.App.4th 1275 
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 
85 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 95 (2002) 

 
Management Resources: 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Public School Choice FAQs 
Every Student Succeeds Act 2016-17 School Year Transition Plan, April 2016 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Transitioning to the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA): Frequently Asked Questions, rev. May 
4, 2016 
Unsafe School Choice Option, May 2004 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 
U.S. Department of Education: http://www.ed.gov 

 
 

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
adopted:   April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California 
revised:   May 10, 2011 Loyalton, California 
revised: September 13, 2016 

http://www.csba.org/
http://www.cde.ca.gov/
http://www.ed.gov/


1 
**Annual Review** 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 
Administrative Regulation 
Intradistrict Open Enrollment 

 
AR 5116.1 
Students 

 
Transfers for Victims of a Violent Criminal Offense 

 
Within a reasonable amount of time, not to exceed 14 days, after it has been determined that a 
student has been the victim of a violent criminal offense while on school grounds, the student's 
parents/guardians shall be offered an option to transfer their child to an eligible school identified 
by the Superintendent or designee. In making the determination that a student has been a victim 
of a violent criminal offense, the Superintendent or designee shall consider the specific 
circumstances of the incident and consult with local law enforcement as appropriate. Examples 
of violent criminal offenses include, but are not limited to, attempted murder, battery with 
serious bodily injury, assault with a deadly weapon, rape, sexual battery, robbery, extortion, or 
hate crimes. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall consider the needs and preferences of the affected student 
and his/her parent/guardian in making the offer. If the parent/guardian elects to transfer his/her 
child, the transfer shall be completed as soon as practicable. 

 
Transfers from a "Persistently Dangerous" School 

 
Upon receipt of notification from the California Department of Education (CDE) that a district 
school has been designated as "persistently dangerous," the Superintendent or designee shall 
provide parents/guardians of students attending the school with the following notifications: 

 
1. Within 10 days of receipt of the notification from CDE, notice of the school's designation 

 
2. Within 20 days of receipt of the notification from CDE, notice of the option to transfer 
their child 

 
(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 

 
Parents/guardians who desire to transfer their child out of a "persistently dangerous" school shall 
provide a written request to the Superintendent or designee and shall rank-order their preferences 
from among all schools identified by the Superintendent or designee as eligible to receive 
transfer students. The Superintendent or designee may establish a reasonable timeline, not to 
exceed seven school days, for the submission of parent/guardian requests. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall consider the needs and preferences of students and 
parents/guardians before making an assignment, but is not obligated to accept the 
parent/guardian's preference if the assignment is not feasible due to space constraints or other 



2 
**Annual Review** 

considerations. For students whose parents/guardians accept the offer, the transfer shall generally 
be made within 30 school days of receiving the notice of the school's designation from the CDE. 
If parents/guardians decline the assigned school, the student may remain in his/her current 
school. 

 
The transfer shall remain in effect as long as the student's school of origin is identified as 
"persistently dangerous." The Superintendent or designee may choose to make the transfer 
permanent based on the educational needs of the student, parent/guardian preferences, and other 
factors affecting the student's ability to succeed if returned to the school of origin. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall cooperate with neighboring districts to develop an 
interdistrict transfer program in the event that space is not available in a district school. 

 
(cf. 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance) 

Other Intradistrict Open Enrollment 

Except for transfers for victims of a violent crime and from a "persistently dangerous school," 
the following procedures shall apply to intradistrict open enrollment: 

 
1. The Superintendent or designee shall identify those schools which may have space 
available for additional students. A list of those schools and open enrollment applications shall 
be available at each school site, the district office, and on the district's web site. 

 
2. After the enrollment priorities have been applied in accordance with Board policy, if 
there are more requests for a particular school than there are spaces available, a random drawing 
shall be held from the applicant pool. A waiting list shall be established to indicate the order in 
which applicants may be accepted if openings occur during the year. Late applicants shall not 
be added to the waiting list for the current year but shall instead wait for a subsequent lottery. 

 
3. The Superintendent or designee shall provide written notification to applicants as to 
whether their applications have been approved, denied, or placed on a waiting list. If the 
application is denied, the reasons for denial shall be stated. 

 
4. Approved applicants must confirm their enrollment within 10 school days. 

 
Any student who, prior to the 2016-17 school year, was granted a transfer out of a Title I school 
that had been identified for program improvement shall be allowed to remain in the school of 
enrollment until he/she completes the highest grade offered at that school. 

 
(cf. 0520.2 - Title I Program Improvement Schools) 

 
A student granted intradistrict enrollment under other circumstances shall not be required to 
reapply for readmission but may be subject to displacement due to excessive enrollment. 

 
Any complaints regarding the open enrollment process shall be submitted in accordance with the 



3 
**Annual Review** 

applicable complaint procedure. 
 
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 

Notifications 

Notifications shall be sent to parents/guardians at the beginning of each school year describing 
all current statutory attendance options and local attendance options available in the district. 
Such notification shall include: (Education Code 35160.5, 48980) 

1. All options for meeting residency requirements for school attendance 

(cf. 5111.1 - District Residency) 
(cf. 5118 - Open Enrollment Act Transfers) 

 
2. Program options offered within local attendance areas 

 
3. A description of any special program options available on both an interdistrict and 
intradistrict basis 

 
4. A description of the procedure for application for alternative attendance areas or 
programs and the appeals process available, if any, when a change of attendance is denied 

 
5. A district application form for requesting a change of attendance 

 
6. The explanation of attendance options under California law as provided by the CDE 

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 

 
 

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
approved:   April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California 
revised:   May 10, 2011 Loyalton, California 
revised: September 13, 2016 



1 
**Annual Review** 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 
Exhibit 
Intradistrict Open Enrollment 

 
E 5116.1 
Students 

 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATION: 
OPTION TO TRANSFER FROM A PERSISTENTLY DANGEROUS SCHOOL 

 
Dear Parents/Guardians: 

 
The California Department of Education has designated the School as a 
"persistently dangerous" school based on state criteria which include expulsion rates for certain 
types of offenses, gun-free schools violations and violent criminal offenses committed on school 
property. 

 
Federal law requires that all parents/guardians of students in this school be offered an 
opportunity to transfer their children to another eligible district school or charter school which 
has not been so designated. Such transfers would take effect on [date]. 

 
The following schools are available to accept transfers: 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Other district schools may not appear on this list because either (1) they also have been identified 
as "persistently dangerous," or (2) the Superintendent has determined that all transfer requests 
can be accomplished among the above schools. 

 
Information about each available school is enclosed, including information on academic 
achievement. 

 
If you decide you want to transfer your child, please submit your top [number] choices of 
schools on the enclosed form by [date] to the [district office or the principal at your child's 
school]. It cannot be guaranteed that your first choice will be available, but your preferences will 
be considered. 

 
If you choose to transfer your child, you will be expected to provide or arrange for transportation 
to and from the child's school. As funds and space permit, transportation may be provided upon 
request, with priority given to students with the greatest financial need. 



2 
**Annual Review** 

 
 
 

Exhibit SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
version: April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California 

 
 
 
PARENT/GUARDIAN TRANSFER REQUEST FROM A "PERSISTENTLY DANGEROUS" 
SCHOOL 

 
Instructions: To request a transfer for your child out of a school that has been designated as 
"persistently dangerous," please complete the following form and return it by [return date] to the 
[district office or to your child's school]. You will be notified by [date] regarding your child's 
school assignment for the next school year and your options if you decide to decline the school 
assignment at that time. 

 
Child's Name:     
Parent/Guardian's Name:  Signature:   
School Child Currently Attends:      

 

Please write numbers in the boxes below to rank your top [number] choices of available schools: 
?  [school name]   
?  [school name]   
?  [school name]   

 

If you have any questions, please contact [name] at [phone number]. 
 
 

Exhibit SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
version: April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California 


	01_2019-06-11_SCOE_Agenda
	02_2018-19 Second Interim Reports_positive certification
	03_Resignation Letter_Brittany Lane
	04_SCOE May2019 ObjSumm
	Account Object Summary-Balance
	1
	1
	01
	
	
	
	5
	1000
	2000
	3000
	4000
	5000
	6000
	7000





	11
	
	
	
	5
	1000
	3000
	4000
	5000
	6000
	7000





	16
	
	
	
	5
	7000









	05_05-14-2019_SCOE_Minutes
	06_SCOE May2019 Checks
	Board Report
	1
	00015264
	00015265
	00015266
	00015267
	00015268
	00015269
	00015270
	00015271
	00015272
	00015273
	00015274
	00015275
	00015276
	00015277
	00015278
	00015279
	00015280
	00015281
	00015282
	00015283
	00015284
	00015285
	00015286
	00015287
	00015288
	00015289
	00015291

	2
	01
	11
	76



	07_19-20 SCOE ConApp
	2019-20 Certification of Assurances
	2019-20 Protected Prayer Certification
	2019-20 LCAP Federal Addendum Certification
	2019-20 Application for Funding
	2019-20 Substitute System for Time Accounting

	08_2020-06C_SCOE_County of Sierra_FNL
	09_2019-2020 Extra Duty  Personnel_Athletics_June 2019
	10_2019-20 Extra Duty Personnel_Non_Athlete__June 2019
	11_2019-20 SELPA Budget and Service Plan_unsigned packet_present to Board
	abspchecklist.pdf
	Copy of Public Hearing Notice
	Physical Location of Services Plan–Form ASP–02a
	 Annual Service Plan (001)
	 Other Facilities (002)
	Copy of Public Hearing Notice




	12-2019-20 SCOE Adopted Narrative
	13_19.20 SCOE Adopted Bdgt Comp
	14_19.20 SCOE Budget MYP Comp
	15_19-20 SCOE SACS
	16_2020-07C_SCOE_Adult Ed_LEASE 2019 BANK BLDG
	17_policies packet
	06-2019 Guidesheet--BOARD PACKET
	0420.4_BP_Charter School Authorization_RED
	0420.4~AR_Charter School Authorization_RED
	7160~AR_Charter School Facilities_CURRENT
	1312.1_BP_Complaints Concerning District Employees_RED
	1312.1~AR_Complaints Concerning District Employees_RED
	3250_BP_Transportation Fees_RED
	3250~AR_Transportation Fees_RED
	3540_BP_Transportation_RED
	3540~AR_Transportation_DELETE
	6142.1_BP_Sexual Health and HIV~AIDS Prevention Instruction_RED
	6142.1~AR_Sexual Health and HIV~AIDS Prevention Instruction_RED
	6142.6_BP_Visual and Performing Arts Education_RED
	6146.1_BP_High School Graduation Requirements_RED
	6145_BP_Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities_CURRENT
	6145~AR_Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities_CURRENT
	5116.1_Et Al_Intradistrict Open Enrollment_CURRENT
	Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
	Board Policy
	Intradistrict Open Enrollment
	Students


	Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
	Administrative Regulation
	Intradistrict Open Enrollment
	Students


	Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
	Exhibit
	Intradistrict Open Enrollment
	Students







